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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall bring this meeting to order. This is the Council's
Committee on Budget and Finance. We are meeting on the 29th of March, 2016.
Present are Vice-Chairman Mr. White, Committee Members...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excused is Mr. Guzman. As the Chair stated yesterday, please turn off
your noise-making equipment. Members and Staff know the Chair will impose a $5
penalty. For the gallery, we ask that you keep your noise-making devices on silent or
off mode as we prepare to receive testimony on any item that has been agendized for
today's meeting. As we take testimony, we request you state your name, if you
represent an organization, to share that information with us and by our posting you
have three minutes and three minutes only. There is no one minute to conclude in
this Committee. We will assist you with your time with the lighting. Green means
speak, yellow means you have 30 seconds to conclude and red means you will stop.
We shall also ask for testimony from the District Offices and this morning we will start
with the Chamber. So the first person well ask to come forward is Terry Epstein and
following the gentleman will be Stacy Vosberg. Thank you. Okay. And please address
your comments to the Chair, thank you.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MR. EPSTEIN: Good morning, Council Committee Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. EPSTEIN: Thank you for the opportunity to speak. My name is Terry Epstein. My wife
and I live at 120 Kaimanu Place in Kihei. When the County Council passed the STR
ordinance in 2012, we had been retired for a few years. We saw an opportunity to
start a small business using our home. We began the application process,
painstakingly, following all the rules to become a legal STRH. We did not rent our
home during the application process and continued to pay real estate taxes without
taking the homeowner's exemption in anticipation of receiving a permit. We never
imagined that in both cases, the process would take so long. We applied in the fall of
2012. Three years and four months after applying, we finally received our permit on
February 23, 2016. We have seen the County Council over this time period push
onerous classification increases on STRH owners while use by Code has been defined
as residential. We are not a hotel or a resort. We do not have the same development
or use rights granted by Hotel zoning. We are limited by the number of occupants on
property. STRs are not allowed to have weddings, have a no-party restriction. STRs
cannot have the many commercial activities that a hotel is allowed. We have
restrictions on noise levels and quiet hours outside from 9:00 p.m. until 8:00 a.m.
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And beyond those things, our STRH permits add no value to our properties should we
sell because the permit cannot be transferred upon the sale of our home. STRH
permit holders who have done the right things to get permitted should not be
penalized by increasing our taxes so drastically to the Hotel rate. Please let me
explain what I mean by a drastic increase. Had we claimed the homeowners
exemption, our taxes would have been $23,000. Because we got our STR permit in
2016, our real estate taxes will be $49,800. But as proposed with the Hotel
classification, we would be paying our home... and without our homeowner's
exemption, we would be paying $76,700. Just by being permitted, we saw our real
estate taxes increase 27,000. We don't know if we will be able to rent our home or for
how many days each year well rent. We are just a small start-up business, so we
have only had expense and risk. This will be a real burden on STR owners. I'd be
happy to pay the Hotel tax rate if I had the development rights and usage granted
rights a hotel. You have passed a good ordinance that can benefit the County of Maui
in a very positive way. It just needs some minor changes. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the gentleman
on his testimony presented? Having none, Mr. Epstein, thank you for your testimony
this morning. Before I call the next person up, I forgot to mention that we also do, we
take in written testimony so if you choose to send in additional comments in written
form, the Committee will be happy to receive those comments. Stacy Vosberg, please
and following Ms. Vosberg will be Shirley Smith.
MS. VOSBERG: Aloha, Council and Budget Committee Members. My name is Stacy Vosberg
and I'm the Operations Manager for Nellie's Rentals in Paia. And thank you for letting
us read our thoughts. I'm testifying against raising the tax rate for short-term rental
home from the Commercial classification to the Hotel classification. STRHs are not
household names like our hotels, such as the Hyatt, Marriott, Westin or Sheraton. We
do not have the same amenities that they do. Some of these are lobbies, meeting
rooms, gift shops, bars and restaurants. We don't provide room service, daily maid
service or valet parking. We are a totally different entity. STRHs are defined as
residential in the Code. Those of us with permits should not be penalized because
there are others who didn't get theirs. At the end of 2014, this Committee decided by
a seven to zero vote to tax us as Commercial for tax valuation. This was a good and
fair decision. Please, let's keep it that way. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the lady on
her comments this morning? Thank you for being here, Ms. Vosberg. Shirley Smith,
please and following Ms. Smith will be David DeLeon.
MS. SMITH: Hello, my name is Shirley Smith.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. SMITH: Good morning. We live at 409 Front Street and the first gentleman said
everything that I had planned on saying, so it's just a waste of time. But I wanted to
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let the Council know that we're not for raising our taxes again and we've complied with
everything and we enjoy Maui very much. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you please state your name for the record?
MS. SMITH: Shirley Smith.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.
MS. SMITH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for the lady, Members, on her very concise testimony?
Thank you very much for being here this morning. Mr. DeLeon next and following him
will be Sydney Smith.
MR. DeLEON: Aloha. I'm Dave DeLeon representing the 1,400 members of the REALTORS®
Association of Maui in opposition to the proposal to increase the property tax rate on
short-term rental properties from Commercial to Hotel/Resort. Just over a year ago,
the Council unanimously agreed that the appropriate tax rate for STRs, STR properties
would be Commercial because these are not hotel properties. Did something happen
since then to justify a change in tax policy? This class of properties does not appear to
be significant enough to truly affect the County's tax income bottom line either way.
And a number of these property owners may be able to absorb the proposed
30 percent tax increase; however, the biggest impact will appear to be on those
karnaaina families who are dependent on the income they can generate from their
family properties. A 30 percent tax increase will be a big hit for them. For families
who just applied for their, who applied for their permits and set their budgets since
the tax rate was set 16 months ago, such an increase will appear arbitrary. For those
considering applying for a permit, the message will be that the County cannot be
trusted to be fair. Why would such an increase not be fair? Because short-term
rentals are not hotels, they are not zoned for hotel use. As you all know, their permits,
the permits that they're under are highly restricted. A small number of, they have a
small number of sleeping units, no events, no parties, no restaurants. They must be
using existing residential property, et cetera. These are renewable permits, for
investment purposes, that's a very short leash. Unlike hotels, STRs, STR business
value is limited to the actual income because the permit cannot be transferred. The
business cannot be sold. This does not add to the value of the property when the
property is sold. By contrast, the owner of a resort condominium enjoys the right to a
short-term rent by zoning. There are no heavy County rules affecting the use. There's
no permit required and the owners are able to sell their businesses. Vacation use is
very much a factor in the value of their property. On the question of applying Hotel
rate to vacation rentals operating without a permit, good luck. Just three weeks ago,
a Deputy Corporation Counsel ruled in this same room that the County does not have
the authority to tax an illegal activity. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for Mr. DeLeon on
testimony presented? Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Mr. DeLeon, for being
here. In, since you say you represent a large number of folks, in your experience
when somebody tries to get a refinance of their home and they're classified as
Commercialized Residential, are they having issues with that?
MR. DeLEON: Yes, they are. They're having difficulties with a variety of insurance and
refmances, particularly.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. DeLEON: I'll take back the insurance, I misspoke. It was the refis.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for the gentleman? Having none, thank you
very much -MR. DeLEON: Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. DeLeon. Sydney Smith, to be followed by Eve Hogan.
MS. SMITH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. SMITH: Good morning, Council. My name is Sydney Smith. My husband and I own
Maliko Estate Coffee. I'm the current president of the Maui Coffee Association and I'm
on the Ag Working Group. We own a 20-acre coffee farm near Makawao that spans
two TMKs. Less than 1 percent of our land is dedicated to vacation rentals and our
home. The rest is farm. This bill would tax our entire farm at Hotel and Resort tax
rate. I know other farmers which, with much larger parcels that have, who have a
fraction of a percent for their vacation rental and this won't work for them, either. It
took me two years, hundreds of pages of documentation and a public hearing before
the Planning Commission to get my license. At that hearing, I got unanimous
approval and a standing ovation from the commissioners for operating a beautiful,
successful farm and doing everything right. I was gratified to get some encouragement
for a change. This bill is not encouraging. It especially harms farms and ranches that
operate on multiple TMKs. At a meeting a few weeks ago with some farmers and
asked them if they were interested in working with the Mayor to buy or lease some of
the HC86S land to put in some large orchards of farms, the overwhelming answer was,
why? When every five minutes there's another attack on ag from the County. They
don't want ag, they want houses. So I got no takers. In the Mayor's State of the
County address, he said he was also unable to get any vegetable farmers interested in
HC&S land. Are any of you surprised? No business is more uncertain than farming.
Diversifying your business makes good economic sense. Maui County needs to
support farming and ranching instead of assaulting it on a regular basis. If you did,
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we could have a healthy, vibrant agriculture economy here on Maui, but we won't have
it if we have to spend all our time repelling attacks. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, questions for the lady on testimony presented? Thank you very
much for your testimony this morning, Ms. Smith.
MS. SMITH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Hogan is next and shell be followed by Eddene McNamara.
MS. HOGAN: Good morning, Council. I'm Eve Hogan. I'm the owner of the Sacred Garden
and Sacred Garden Retreat Upcountry and a member of the Ag Working Group. And
I'm super confused and I feel like we're in another case of one brush does not fit all
and I'm feeling damned if I do and damned if I don't. My husband and I bought
property Upcountry 11 years ago in what the County considers to be un-farmable ag
land. It is in the bottom of the gulch with steep cliffs and periodic inundation zones
and because we're on ag land in order to do anything, I had to figure out how to
become a farmer. So I went to the master farmers' classes or the master gardeners'
classes, studied farming. I've been doing everything I can. I keep a nursery open
seven days a week. I'm doing all that we can to do ag. We've cleared trash off the
property. We fight invasive species. We do all these things and yet it's excruciatingly
expensive to do that. So then when the property next door came up available, we
thought, wow, we could put a stop to the drug use going on here, the drug deals going
on here, the dump site going on here and the domestic violence going on here. But
that's expensive, too. So a vacation rental seemed like the perfect solution to finance
that. And it would be, except for that we've been continually treated like we're the bad
guys for trying to make a living on a farm and trying to do those services. So if you'd
like to tax us at Hotel rates just like the other people said, great. Give us sidewalks.
Give us stop...give us streetlights. Give us water so we can turn our seasonal stream
into a year round one. Wouldn't that be a nice water feature on the property? Give us
all of the services that the hotels get and all the rights that the hotels get. Zone us as
hotels. I don't think that's what you want and I don't think that's what we want and
ironically, the people who stay with us, stay with us because we're not a hotel. So my
request of you is to follow wisdom. Stop penalizing us for trying to make a living on
the island and serving the community. Please, please do not let this bill go through.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for the lady on testimony presented, Members?
MS. HOGAN: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, having none, thank you very much.
MS. HOGAN: And my refinance got turned down because I'm a working farm.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eddene McNamara, to be followed by John Miles.
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MS. McNAMARA: Hello, Council. My name is Eddene McNamara and I'm here to read
Paul Laub's testimony as he wasn't able to be here today.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cannot hear.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can she bring the microphone down, close to the mic, yeah.
MS. McNAMARA: Can you hear me now?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You gotta get it really close to your mouth.
MS. McNAMARA: Okay. I am here to read Paul Laub's testimony. He was unable to be here
today. He did submit his e-mail to you via e-mail. So on behalf of Paul: Aloha,
Councilmembers. Approximately 18 months ago, it was determined by this Council
that the appropriate taxation for short-term rentals and, was the Commercial
category. The concept of Hotel/Resort classification was brought up at that time.
After discussion, it was decided that Hotel did not fit for at least the following reasons:
Weddings and parties are not allowed. Ancillary businesses such as spa, hair dresser,
boutiques, jewelry stores, art galleries, tours, car rentals, food, necessity sales,
restaurant activity, beach equipment rentals, tournaments, other entertainments and
luaus are all not allowed on STRs. The STR permit is not transferable and does not
run with the land. There is no increased valuation to the property for property sales.
The taxation rate per room for a hotel is much lower, due to the fact that STRs are
actually limited to a very small number of rentable rooms. The management of the
hotels are employees, while the STR management is limited to relatives or real estate
agent. Employees are not allowed in the management. The STR manager may only be
off-island for a maximum 90-days per annum. There is no similar restrictions to
hotels. Accordingly, I am openly in favor of raising the STR rates to Hotel rates if STRs
are given the same rights and privileges as the hotels. Otherwise, I would, it would be
extremely unfair to charge the STRs the same price as hotels, but restrict them with
their operations and opportunities. Thank you very much. Paul Laub.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for sharing his thoughts. Any questions, Members? Having
none, thank you very much for being here. John Miles, please and after Mr. Miles,
we're going to the District Offices.
MR. MILES: Aloha. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. MILES: My name is John Miles. I have a home at 1206 Summer Road in Lahaina and
just echo what everyone else has said, no need to repeat. You folks have heard
everything that's been said and I'd just like to add maybe one other thing is some of us
are in HOA areas and HOA areas, in my particular one, we're allowed one rental per
month and how can we provide taxes to be justified to pay additional for these taxes
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just for that? We've been through the process of getting the business tax license, the
process, the long process of getting the application submitted and approved and now
we're faced with something for which it's penalty after penalty after penalty and all we
ask for is to be treated fairly. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the gentleman on his
testimony presented? Mr. Miles, thank you very much for being here.
MR. MILES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well go to our Hana Office and ask, Ms. Lono, is there anyone wishing to
provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Fernandez, anyone on Lanai wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and my first testifier is
Dayna Harris.
MS. HARRIS: Hi. I'm Dayna Harris. I'm the broker of Molokai Vacation Properties and I do
represent a few owners that are legal, but I'm really talking about everybody on
Molokai. And I just want you guys to know that people come to Molokai because we
are not resort. We are so far from resort and I really do think it's kind of unfair for us
on Molokai. We have maybe two parks. We have no lifeguards. We have no spas. We
have a nine-hole golf course. We have maybe one playground. There's so many like
lack of services here. Some of these places on the West End, that you want to charge
the Hotel/Resort, the roads are horrible. There's potholes. There's grass. They can't
even get cable to their house. They can't get Wi-Fi. I just think it's kind of unfair for
these people that they should be charged that same rate as the Hotel tax and they
don't get the same amount amenities that the hotel people do get and they can have
on their properties. So I just feel like if you want to be fair, we raise the TAT tax again,
but keep the regular one at the Commercialized rate. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for the lady on her testimony, Members?
Having none, thank you very much for your testimony. Is there anyone else,
Ms. Alcon?
MS. ALCON: No, that's it. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Well return back to the Chambers and ask if Martha Ingalls
is present and ask her to please come forward. And following her will be
Mr. Glenn Kosaka.
MS. INGALLS: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. INGALLS: Aloha to the Councilmembers. I, my name is Martha Ingalls and I represent
the owner of 3378 Keha Drive in Maui Meadows. Kathleen Gildred was the second
STR in 1994 when she applied and went through the permitting process. We are now
in the third renewal of that permit and the existing classification seems appropriate
and fair and we believe that an increase will probably put a lot of people out of
business. It takes approximately between 30 and 50 nights of rentals to pay our
current taxes. A proposed increase may take somewhere between 70 and 100 nights
to pay the taxes. We appreciate the work that you have done and we implore that you
keep in mind that the guests in our homes and...come because they cannot afford
hotels and they wish to have an experience of the aina. They meet people like myself
and Eve Hogan and Tom Croly. They meet people in their homes. They want to be
part of our community in a more closely related situation. They spend more money in
our local businesses, renting boogie boards and snorkels and going, you know, going
out on activities, than if they were in a hotel than when they're in a secluded
environment. So we address the Council and propose that the current classification
be held in place. Thank you very much for your time and your efforts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Ingalls. Any questions for the lady on testimony
presented? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and good morning, Ms. Ingalls. Thank
you for being here. You said that your units are affordable? So what would those
prices be in reference to a hotel? You said they're, they like it because it's more
affordable than staying at a hotel?
MS. INGALLS: So it's a 3-bedroom, 3-bath home that can accommodate approximately 8
people at $525 a night.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are there any other questions for the lady on her testimony, Members?
Having none, Ms. Ingalls, thank you very much for your testimony.
MS. INGALLS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Glenn Kosaka and following him will be Allyson Freeland.
MR. KOSAKA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Members of the Budget and Finance
Committee.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. KOSAKA: In the '40s, Great-Grandpa Luuwai built his fishing shack in Makena. And
from that time until now, the family has enjoyed the place and the environment that's
not repeatable. When they got their... shortly after the family got their conditional
permit, their taxes went up from about 5,000 to approximately $20,000. This was a
big hit, but it was something that was manageable. If this ordinance is passed as
originally presented, it would hurt the effort of the Luuwai family to preserve what
they believe is their heritage. This is not a hotel resort. There are only four bedrooms.
And no one is profiting, taking a junket not even to Lahaina. The family had to buy
out one of its members and as a result, there's a mortgage to be paid and there are
other expenses for repair and maintenance. And so they're just making it at the
present time. So I ask that the Council consider adjusting the ordinance as presented
so as to preserve the current tax rate for, or classification for the Luuwais so that the
family can preserve the property for this and future generations. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kosaka. Any questions for the gentleman on testimony
Having none, thank you for your testimony this morning.
presented?
Allyson Freeland, to be followed by Annette Niles.
MS. FREELAND: Good morning. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. FREELAND: My name is Allyson Freeland. I've lived here on Maui for about 20 years as
a small business owner, worked in the visitor industry for many years and just in the
last few years was able to purchase a home with a small cottage. Tried the long-term
thing, didn't work out too great as far as there was damage to our property, as well as
to the cottage, so about 18 months ago, I believe, I don't know the timeline, but when
the Commercial rate was approved, I thought well, maybe, Ill, you know, approach the
office and see about doing an STRH. I had a very positive experience, actually, with
the County over there. Took about six to seven months and I thought they did a great
job so in the timeline of a lot of other people who had frustration, I feel like they did a
very good job and I think some of the limitations, especially in Haiku are probably
good for our community that there aren't a lot of other outside activities, but we
certainly are not a hotel. It's a 400-square-foot cottage and I think that the people
who come to stay in Haiku are there for wind sports. They're there for things that they
don't want to drive 45 minutes to and I think specifically where I am near the Haiku
Cannery, the area's prospered immensely from vacation rental because new
restaurants have opened. We've gotten rid of drug problems. We've cleared out, you
know, a lot of issues, community issues that were taking place there because there
were empty buildings and back alleys which now are not. And it's, because the
landowners of those commercial properties see that by putting in a nice restaurant or
shopping, there are people to consume those products...locals, too, but a good
percentage are coming from small places like mine. That's about all I have to say. I
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agree with most everything everyone said; however, I don't operate in that
environment, so I don't want it to be a hotel. We don't want more and more and more,
you know, in Haiku. I think the number of permits is probably applicable to our area.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Freeland. Any questions for the lady on her testimony,
Members? Thank you very much for your presence.
MS. FREELAND: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Annette Niles and following Ms. Niles will be Russell Evans.
MS. NILES: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. NILES: Good morning, Council. My name is Annette Niles, farmer, rancher. I'm in here
24/7, but anyway, my point on this, my take on this is, you know, again, it is gonna
hurt us again on...I don't have a vacation rental, but you know, maybe someday I'd
like to put something on our farm. We have calls, I have calls of, trying to pick up tea,
trying to, want to stay on my property, but you know, now, this is gonna hurt the
farming and ranching. There was something that was given to us that we could do
that would make it a little easier for us, but now again, we get chopped down, you
know, and it's tiring, you know. We fight and we fight and we fight, you know, until
we can't fight no more. You know, there's a lot of people, you know, that have like,
they say the hotels, they have sidewalks, they have streetlights, they have everything
they need. You know, but us, Upcountry, we take care of our self. I paved the County
road to my house and helped my neighbors to get to my place, so you know what,
come on, give us a little break here. You know, people need to make something when
you guys wanna just chop us down again and that's all I got to say. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for the lady on testimony presented? Thank
you, Ms. Niles. Mr. Evans and following him will be Tamara Paltin.
MR. EVANS: That's a tough act to follow. I cannot give as heart rending a speech as that
woman just did, but here's what I have to say. My name is Russell Evans and good
morning and aloha to everyone. And thank you for an opportunity to address the
Committee. It's truly an honor. I came to Maui for the first time in 1984. My wife and
children and I are part-time residents here. We love the beautiful island of Maui. Our
house is a permitted STRH when we're not on island. Having a permit creates jobs for
our management company employees, our house cleaning folks and to some extent,
our landscaper and pool service because, well, if I was not here, when I'm not here, I
gotta have somebody else clean the pool. Our landscaping is kept really top notch
because we have guests, so all those things are additional expenses. I'm 100 percent
supportive of the STRH process. I have encouraged other neighbors to get their
permits and they've had success, so I've been advocating for the County in that
respect. And I'd like to express my views on why the increase in the property tax, I,
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why I would hope that you would reconsider that. We rely solely on the nightly
income we receive from our guests. We don't have restaurants and bars to generate
income in addition to our nightly accommodation rates. We can't host corporate
meetings and conventions that are a significant source of revenue for hotels and
resorts. We do not have the ability to book activities and earn commissions from
booking activities from people. We, if we pay the same rates as a hotel, could we have
a wedding on our property? We're not permitted to do that. We're not allowed to have
group gatherings. We're not allowed to have more than eight people on our property.
So if we pay the same rates, could we have a luau on our property? I don't, I wouldn't
think that would work in our neighborhood. I wouldn't be, I would not advocate that,
but somehow, paying the Resort rate seems akin to being able to do more with your
property. I think we're an excellent source of revenue for the State and I believe some
of that money flows down to the County. We collect over $30,000 a year in GET and
TAT taxes and multiply that by all the STRH permit holders on the, in the County and
I think that's a whole lot of money. I once heard somebody say that owning a house
on Maui and renting it out as an STRH is a golden ticket, but it's actually...and I'm not
crying poor, not crying, not complaining, but it's actually a lot of work because we
have to maintain our homes at a very high level. We have pots and pans and dishes
and knives and forks and appliances in our kitchen that all have to be there for the
guest. Hotels don't do that. So there are additional expenses, additional efforts that
go into maintaining a top quality short-term rental home and I hope you agree that
these are valid reasons and that's all the time I have. Thank you for your attention.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Evans. Any questions for the gentleman on his
testimony? Thank you very much. Ms. Paltin?
MS. PALTIN: Aloha, Council. Thank you for hearing my testimony. If possible, I'd like to
testify on BF-66 as well as BF-6 and they're kind of related, so I might refer to both
during my testimony.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tell us which item you're gonna be speaking on first.
MS. PALTIN: BF-66.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. PALTIN: Okay. So I know that the people have voted in 2012 to merge Ocean Safety and
Fire Department and I think it's really important that in the merger, that you give the
Fire Chief and give the Ocean Safety section all the resources needed to do this right
and not cut corners or things like that. It's really important to understand that since
2002, we've been running a pilot program whereby we respond to all 911 calls and this
pilot program hasn't been included in the past budget years. If you look over the goals
for the previous years, one of our main action things is to provide high-quality
lifeguard service at our County's designated beach parks. It doesn't say anything in
past budgets about also responding on the 911 system with jet skis. And so, from the
frontline experience we've been severely understaffed to the point where many times
we have to make the decision where we're gonna have the shortage, if it's gonna be on
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the response to the 911 system or to the lifeguard beach that we're supposed to be
providing high-quality lifeguard service. In my opinion, I think we need 14 expansion
positions for the 7 jet skis. Each jet skis would have a team of a driver and a grabber
when necessary. The most recent occurrence I think that I can remember for me was
January 14th, we had big swells as you guys might have seen in the newspaper and
the television, a young man broke his femur and we only had three guys, which is
more than we usually have. A lot of times we only have two guys. And I made the
decision to take a grabber with me, leaving our designated beach park, which is where
we're supposed to be providing high-quality lifeguard service, with one guy. This is
20-foot faces, 200 people. We left one guy there to go respond to the kid with the
broken femur. And we were gone for about, I'd say, 45 minutes, you know, so with the
merger to Ocean Safety, we've been directed by our Battalion Chief, who's in the
audience, that the 911 call becomes our priority and that if the 911 call comes and we
need to take two guys, we're to leave our designated beach park unguarded and I
think, you know, up until this point in the history of Ocean Safety, our designated
beach park has been the priority. And I think that's a question that you guys really
need to look into with Corporation Counsel. When people come, especially tourist and
residents alike, if they come to a beach park and they see a lifeguard tower, there's an
expectation that there's a lifeguard there during working hours from 8:00 to 4:30.
Should I switch over?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you speak on your next item, please?
MS. PALTIN: Regarding the proposal, Unit 14 negotiated a really good contract and it, as
they said to us, this is just a starting point for things going in the right direction. Up
until now we were the only jurisdiction in the State that didn't pay our jet ski
operators. All the other counties paid about 2.50 an hour for the rescue craft
operators. With this contract, rescue craft operators are gonna get 3.50 more an hour
and that's important and I totally support it, but you need to think now, if the rescue
craft operator is going to be operating within the beach park, the designated beach
park or they're gonna go the entire coastline and so we need the staffing for the entire
coastline because, you know, if you think about a 50-meter pool, they don't open
without 3 lifeguards. Many, many days we have beach parks, which are over 1,000
yards, operating with 2 lifeguards. And that's not just that beach park. For my beach
that I work at, we work from about Kahakuloa, Nakalele all the way to S-Turns. The
other beach in my district works from S-Turns to the Pali, two guys. And think about
it, that ocean recreation is one of the biggest drivers. The people that stay in transient
vacation rentals, B&Bs, hotels, everybody comes to Maui for the ocean, otherwise, if
they were coming just for the sand, they could go to Arizona. And especially with this
past year, you can see that the ocean is really unpredictable. If you're gonna leave us
to be short-staffed, then we won't be prepared for a year like this year, you know. In
studies from what I've heard, our drowning rates are already much higher than the
rest of the nation and I'm not saying because we don't have great watermen and
women, it's, you know, we need to be proactive on these things and we need to fund
these things because lives are at stake and it's better to put the money proactively
than get sued later on down the road. The money isn't even the point. It's someone's
loved one. It could be your father, your mother, your wife, your husband, your kids,
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your grandparents and I just ask that either we need expansion positions to operate
the jet ski on 911 or we need contract hires especially spring break, you know,
Christmas break, summer break. These are all times when there's a flood of people
and look in the newspaper and there's like record numbers, yay, great. Everyone's
making money, but some people are dying. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Paltin on her testimony? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and good morning, thank you, Ms. Paltin,
for being here and really paying attention to this whole issue all along from the start
and now looking into this transfer. Just interested in your comments in regards to the
911 calls and so, and you're asking for these expansion positions because it's seeming
like there's, they're wanting priority for 911s, no matter what and so you're saying you
folks have to go out and take care of these calls, but leave towers unattended, actual
unattended?
MS. PALTIN: That's the directive that we've been given by our Battalion Chief when we
merged to Ocean Safety, the 911 calls will take precedence. He's in the audience. You
can probably question him more later, but we've been told explicitly that the 911 call
takes priority and if we need to take the grabber, like if it's a injury or a dead body or
something that we, they would like us to go and somebody else can, they don't want
us to wait for the ghost call at our own beach. And the reason that concerns me is a
lot of times we get 911 calls from tourists or, you know, condo lifeguards and I don't
want to discount people from calling 911 because you never know what the situation
could be, but we've had calls for just people doing downwind runs, you know, on a
stand-up paddle board and that's a pretty popular pastime nowadays when it's windy,
people just get on a standup paddle board and, you know, paddle a little bit and let it
push them. 'They'll put in at like Napili Bay and get out at Airport Beach and someone
from middle America is not familiar with seeing someone out in the middle of the
ocean and they'll call 911 and we have to respond. And the thing is we're taking
somebody else's information over our own expertise. We could be at our beach and
have a very active rip current where we're constantly telling people to get out of the rip
current or pulling them out of the rip current. And now a tourist call is superseding
our judgment as to what the important area is, you know. If the rip current at D.T.
Flemings where I work is pulling, it'll take only a matter of seconds for someone to
jump in here and get pulled out there. And if you know how to deal with it or if there's
someone local to help them out, it's not that big a deal, but if they start to panic, then
you only have really, you know, a few minutes to address the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I guess you're saying that you are looking for more, I
mean, more bodies at the site specifically?
MS. PALTIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: In order to address any calls, whether life or death, I mean,
a 911 call is a 911 call, it's emergency for somebody and thereby, addressed, but yet
have coverage at the actual beach?
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MS. PALTIN: Yeah. My point is, why put us in the position where we're having to choose,
you know. If we have four people at every beach with a jet ski, then you have a crew
of two to stay and a crew of two to go and then it's not so much of a question, you
know. I mean, I think the resolution that you folks had passed earlier was to pay two
jet ski operators per day per ski. We have 7 jet skis, so that's 14 operators and then
your beach crew, not saying that each time there's a 911 call well need 2 people, but
those of us that have been doing this for decades know, you know, if there's an injury,
if it sounds like there's a dead body or something like that, we know by hearing the
nature of a call if we're gonna need a grabber or not. And this way we're prepared, you
know, for that occurrence. Without having the expansion positions or the contract
positions or what have you, then, there will be a time when we have to choose
whether, who we're gonna short, you know, if we're gonna short the beach, if we're
gonna short the call and I just think, you know, as professionals, as a destination that
we tell everybody to come, come, come, come see the ocean, come spend time in the
ocean, we should be prepared as a County to provide the highest level of safety. And,
you know, a few dollars proactive can help us in the long run from spending big
money for a settlement or a lawsuit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, thank you very much for your insight on all
that, Tamara. Thank you.
MS. PALTIN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions, Members? Having none, thank you very much for
your testimony this morning. Is there anyone else wishing to provide testimony in the
gallery, please make yourself known, we shall allow you an opportunity to share
testimony.
MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair. Aloha, Committee. I'm Tom Croly and I'm testifying on behalf of
the Maui Vacation Rental Association. You've already heard enough times why it's
inappropriate to classify short-term rental home, permit holders as Hotel/Resort.
These properties were permitted for residential use and the provisions in Code specify
that it's a residential use. Someone had put forward the idea that granting the ability
to rent for less than 180 days at a time is the equivalent of hotel use. As but from
what you have already heard, you can see that that's not true. In real estate
assessment language, the term, highest and best use, specifically refers to the
development rights given to a piece of land. If the development rights allow the
construction of a hotel or a commercial business or a residential home, the highest
and best use for that land is hotel and that's how they base an assessed value on that
land. But when we talk about highest and best use in terms of our taxation, it's not
that, you know, you're granting a short-term rental permit is giving you the highest
and best use of a hotel, it's not. So it's inappropriate to even consider putting these
properties in the classification as Hotel. But I do recognize there is a second
component to the proposed BF-42 that allows the County to reclassify properties that
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don't have permits that are being used or being advertised as short-term rentals. And
while I believe this is an attempt to penalize the property owners who are not following
proper zoning laws, I believe that it also could create many more problems than it
would solve. I'm not sure that shifting zoning enforcement issues to the Real Property
Tax Department is a wise thing to do. I believe it may result in many tax appeals and
you'd have the Real Property Tax Board now having to make decisions on that. And I
also ask what kind of a message would it send to an illegal operator? We're now
taxing you as Hotel, but we're telling you that what you're doing, you're not allowed to
do. So it just puts us in a very difficult position. I don't think it's fair to the people
who have permits to even allow that to continue. I also want to point out that in our
current Code, if someone claims a homeowner exemption that they're not entitled to
perhaps because they're running a short-term rental from their home, we already have
the ability to reclassify that to its underlying zoning, take away the benefits of the
homeowner exemption. This bill would actually make it better for that guy 'cause
you're saying, we're gonna just reclassify you to Commercialized Residential, which
would be a lower tax rate than his underlying zoning tax rate would be. I don't think
that this bill would...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Conclude, Mr. Croly.
MR. CROLY: Yes. I don't think that this bill would allow you to retroactively apply tax,
which I know is something else that we want to do. So it's a good attempt, but I don't
think that it's having the right, it's targeting the right thing. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Questions for the gentleman, Members? Having none,
Mr. Croly, we appreciate your testimony. Anyone else? Well go to the District Offices.
Ms. Lono, anyone else in Hana would like to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Lanai Office, Ms. Fernandez, anyone wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai would like to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, ladies. Members, no objections, we shall close testimony for
today's meeting?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members, so ordered. Testimony is now over for this agenda.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
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ITEM 66:

TRANSFER OF THE OCEAN SAFETY PROGRAM TO THE
DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBLIC SAFETY (CC 16-30)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, may I direct you to BF-66, this is regarding the Transfer
of the Ocean Safety Program to the Department of Fire and Public Safety. This is
under BF-66. We have a communication from Mr. Baz dated, excuse me, No. 16-30,
regarding the transfer of Ocean Safety Program from Parks and Recreation to
Department of Fire and Public Safety and its impact on the annual budget. So well
have the Chief and our Parks Director to come forward. Mr. Baz, any opening
comments?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Councilmembers. The, I'm appreciative of
the Council discussing this item, as you know, in the Fiscal Year 2017 Proposed
Budget, we have proposed again to move the Ocean Safety Division section of the
Department of Parks and Recreation to the Department of Fire and Public Safety as
per the Charter amendment that was passed in 2012. So we've been working on this
for a number of years as you know and like to just thank the Committee for the
opportunity to discuss this in detail before you get too into the '17 Budget and all the
rest of the items in the Budget. So we do have our Chief of Fire and Public Safety,
our, Jeff Murray here, as well as our Department of Parks and Recreation Director
Kaala Buenconsejo to discuss this and any, answer any questions you have. We also
have resources here from Fire and Ocean Safety as well as our Personnel Services.
Mr. Chair, the first item you're discussing is the transfer and then, the second item is
related to, specifically, the BU 14 cost items. And just so the Committee understands,
whether or not the Ocean Safety officers get transferred to the Department of Fire and
Public Safety, the BU 14 cost items are subject to those employees no matter which
department they're in, so just to clarify that, Mr. Chair. So I'm happy to answer any
questions as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. I would also welcome, Mr. Hiromoto, the
Director of Personnel Services. He's also present, so why don't you come down, also,
Mr. Hiromoto. Okay. On this item, Members, well talk about the transfer. We're not
gonna talk about expansion. We're not gonna talk about a lot of things that will be
done when the Department specifically comes for its review. Okay. We will stay on its
narrow focus of the transfer. So things that was brought up in testimony is not part of
this discussion. I'll ask Personnel Director Hiromoto, first, if he has any comments
regarding the transfer, its impact on collective bargaining agreements existing and
moving forward to contract regarding Unit 14. Mr. Hiromoto, any, can you give us
some comments, please?
MR. HIROMOTO: Thank you, Chair, thank you, Members. Yeah. I think the second item on
your agenda will be the cost items for Bargaining Unit 14. I can go at that time
through just a brief history of how this came about through the, a proposed bill
through the Legislature, but as far as the transfer of the Ocean Safety officers'
function from Department of Parks to Department of Fire and Public Safety, I know
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that the, both departments and we have been working hard and making that a smooth
transition. So we're open to any questions that you may have today. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there anything for Mr. Hiromoto, at this time, Members? Okay.
Well hear from the Department of, that's transferring employees so, Mr. Buenconsejo,
from Parks, comments, opening comments on this transfer?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you, Chair, Councilmembers. From the Parks and
Recreation Department, again, thank you for having us here this morning. Regarding
the transfer, I think it, we've definitely moved forward to the point over the past few
years that it has been in discussion. We've been working really diligently with Fire
and having them come together and we've got to the point of where we've gotten
everything straight and tight as far the transfer without going into details with budget
issues. The transfer itself with understandings of equipment and personnel and the
transfer of operational itself, I think this is the year that we've all come together and
really worked hard over the past year now to get that transfer through. And if any
questions that you folks may have for the Department, from the transferee side, I can,
more than happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for Mr. Buenconsejo at this time? So there's, with this
transfer proposal, Director, there's no impact on your regular pool program? Or is
there an adjustment you're gonna need to make in the pool program?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, no, with the transfer itself it will not affect the pool whatsoever.
I think for the transfer itself on the Parks and Recreation side, we've been operating
from a Parks and Recreation side as if the transfer had already taken place. So from
an aquatic standpoint, if the transfer does not happen for some reason during this
fiscal or Fiscal Year '17, again, our Aquatics Division is covering some of that
operational side for Ocean Safety, so it won't affect the pools. But Ocean Safety is
definitely getting affected in a sense by staying within the Parks and Recreation
Department currently.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Chief Murray, any opening comments you'd like to
share with us?
MR. MURRAY: Aloha, Budget Chair. Good morning, Councilmembers. Thank you for the
opportunity for all of us to be here and speak about this transfer. Like the, both
Directors before me has stated, we are poised to move forward. I believe all of the
meetings between our groups for the past year-and-a-half or so, which was multiple
times a month, have, we're at that point where I believe the movement should be made
and I know the discussions for items will be done at a later time, but we'd be happy to
answer any questions thus far in this merger, so thank you for the opportunity.
Thank you, Budget Chair...Budget Director, for making this happen because I think
this is really important.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chief, as far as your understanding with Directors Buenconsejo and
Hiromoto, everything is all set for July 1st, effective date?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes. The only hold up I would say is there are some positions that we're
asking for. We would like to have those done as soon as possible and we all know that
the process for hiring and what have you takes a lot, so I'm not sure exactly what
would be the best takeoff date for that, but that would be definitely a hurdle in this
process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You'll still be with us, Mr. Hiromoto? Or we have Mr. Underwood
in charge of the shop?
MR. HIROMOTO: Beg your pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you gonna be here, assisting in the transfer or is it the Deputy that's
going to undertake this new challenge?
MR. HIROMOTO: My competent Deputy will be taking charge of this beginning July 1st. As
you know, Chair, I'll be retiring close of business June 30th. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we congratulate you and thank you for your years of service.
MR. HIROMOTO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, questions for either, all, well, we got three Directors and one
Chief, so, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, really no questions. All I have to say, it's about
time. I thought I'd be out of this building before you guys got this done. And that's all
I got to say about that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Chief, one of, we had some discussions last year
regarding some personnel issues. Have those personnel issues that were of concern to
you been resolved?
MR. MURRAY: It is, been worked on. We have been working on those issues between both
departments as well as DPS on the process and the procedures. That was also
covered during the bargaining unit arbitration as well, so we feel fairly confident
moving forward with that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And will the -MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I know right now the pool guards fill in for the beach guards when
there's vacation and sick leave, will the pool guards still be able to fill in under the
new setup?
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MR. MURRAY: Under the new setup, no.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I really don't have any questions. I was going to ask what
Mr. White asked about the substitution for personnel in case of any kind of absence or
excuse.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No questions, just that, yes, it's nice to see that we're here
actually talking about it happening, so my only comments and we'll get more details
during the full budget session time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. No questions, but hallelujah! I never, like
Mr. Victorino, I thought I wouldn't make it out the door with this being done, you
know. It's, there's been many delays and we understand it's very complicated, but
let's get it done. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, questions? One area of concern and maybe,
Mr. Ueoka may need to chime in. One of my areas of issue is of course, our
operations, especially with equipment and what and how are we going to as a County
deal with the potential liability for employees using medical marijuana and operating
equipment? Is that something you folks have addressed and have a policy in place?
Because I am not a comfortable Chair in this matter.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Buenconsejo?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: If I can jump in a little bit on that one. So during this whole process
as we went through the whole planning and going back and forth with the union
process, I think there was a misunderstanding. It's not necessarily medical marijuana
cards that our lifeguards are holding. It's the Marinol prescriptions that we're trying
to make sure, which again is the issue, is someone as a lifeguard or any kind of public
safety having a Marinol prescription, which in return for the testing as we do random
drug testing would show as a result of them possibly being dirty or negative or
positive, I should say. Having the prescription, you can't tell the alteration with that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn't the prescription for a specific severe medical issue?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes. Even for the, I think it's debilitating pain is what the
description reads for some of that. But again, rather and I believe that was brought
up--I could reference that to Chief up in the stand--with the Bargaining Unit 14 as
well. Those issues were brought up in that bargaining unit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So is that something you can inform the Committee on how the County is
going to implement a policy regarding that specific employee situation?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: As far as, Chair, as far as implementing a policy with some of that
unit, I would have to probably refer to Corp. Counsel or get back to you on that one
exactly. But in a sense of right now currently, rather it's with Parks or if the transfer
goes with Fire, that hasn't been, you know, as far 100 percent resolved on that, you
know, those are things that we're still working on to make sure of. We're all aware,
right, we're all trying to get to that point of getting it out of there and working with the
unions, but again, no matter where the transfer goes, it's still an issue and a current
issue that we're dealing with.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, my thing is if the employee needs that medication, I can understand
it. But to me, then, that means that that person shouldn't be operating equipment.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, and we 100 percent agree with that as well. So we are working
with that definitely. That's the one thing that Battalion Chief Colin and our Ocean
Safety Captain Cary is also very aware of it. It's not that we're not doing anything
about it, but it's a process and we are getting to that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief, any comments from your side? We've heard from Director
Buenconsejo.
MR. MURRAY: I would have to echo what he just said. It is a work in progress and we
realize the significance of that and we are trying to take action as we move forward.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we depend on you as our department heads to do your
administrative responsibilities.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quick question and really more for clarification
purposes if you don't mind, Mr. Chair. Mr. White brought up an issue about guard,
pool lifeguards and ocean lifeguards and if I remember when I first started and a
couple of times explained to us that ocean guards could come and do pool guarding,
but pool guards could not go to ocean unless they were specially trained, so there was
never really an issue as far as pool guards being pulled to the ocean unless they had
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special training. But the other side used to happen where sometimes at a pool, the
beach lifeguard to a pool to keep that pool open. Am I correct in that? I just want to
make sure because I, not that Mr. White was, said something, but it triggered my
mind thinking, that's the way I thought it was. I may be wrong, but please explain to
me.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So you are right, Mr. Victorino, but it doesn't go back. The beach
does not really necessarily go back and help open a pool.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: There are some pool guards that are on, have return rights and those
beaches are the Makena pool lifeguards because there's a State contract with that and
they are funding the Makena lifeguard stands, so those positions at Makena currently
have return rights. In the event it was to not get funded -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --they have return rights to come back to the pool. With this process
and with the extra expansion positions, you know, we'll still have a couple of them
that will have return rights, but as the time goes on, it will be in a sense weeded out
where no Ocean Safety lifeguard will eventually have any return rights back to the
pool.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you much, Mr. Buenconsejo, because that was my
next question about return rights because right now it's under Parks. When you
change, how long will you give them that opportunity with return rights because now
you're in a different division, a different department, right?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. That answered my two questions.
Thank you, Chair.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: We have a timeframe, so there's a timeframe that return rights will no
longer be accepted.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Further questions, Members? I'm gonna take a mid-morning break
now and then, we'll finish up this item and before we go into cost items. So, Members,
we'll be in recess 'til 10:20. . . .(gavel). . .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:12 a.m.
10:27 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall bring this meeting back to order. We are currently
on Item 66 regarding the transfer of Ocean Safety Program from Parks to the
Department of Fire. So to try and bring this, wrap up this subject, Members, one of
the things I wanted to ask Chief Murray because it was interesting what we heard in
testimony from, I believe, an Ocean Safety person as well as how we understand the
roles of our firefighters. And by Charter, the firefighters are, through the Chief, shall
be trained, equipped, maintained and supervise the force of firefighting, shoreline and
ocean safety and rescue. So saying that, Chief, what is the...I'm trying to understand,
is the firefighter the first personnel that gets directed to respond or is it the Ocean.
Safety personnel, since the firefighter is also part of shoreline response?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair, for that question. It's basically the closest entity to the
situation and they will work together. So normally how that would work and say we
pick something in Napili, our Napili Fire Station if they're available will respond to that
call from shore to provide rescue services and if we have the opportunity to utilize the
jet ski unit based on the situation, we will, they will be called for that situation at the
same time. And then it would be the commander on shore that would help direct the
rescue operation and that's only from eight o'clock to 16:30 in the afternoon. So we
have that resource available during the daytime hours.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. All other hours, the firefighter would be the first -MR. MURRAY: Yes and the only.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --command choice?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And with that, Chief, so we're clear and I bring it up only because
the Legislature's gonna consider real shortly not to continue to allow the counties to
have indemnification on shoreline responses and whatnot. So stating that, just to be
clear on areas of jurisdiction, our understanding is anything below the high
watermark is DLNR and once in the water is Coast Guard and under maritime law, in
maritime enforcement. So, Mr. Ueoka, how much protection does our County
employees have in areas of jurisdiction that is clearly State and Federal government?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I'm not sure about the jurisdictional matters, but it would
essentially be a question of whether or not the employee was negligent. It would
probably, the lawsuit would likely look at negligence more than jurisdictional lines. If
the Ocean Safety officer responded regardless if it's in County jurisdiction, if they're
negligent in their actions we, you know, could be, suit could be brought against us.
Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Our firefighters also have, we also equip our, your firefighters with
jet skis, right, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do, but not all of our stations have them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. It's your stations that mainly respond to ocean calls, has those
skis?
MR. MURRAY: Not all of 'em. We have specific areas, Molokai, Lahaina, Wailea and Kahului.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Initially, it was only for our rescue crew. And Hana, I'm sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Very good, Chief, thank you for that. What they handed out to you,
Members, is a news report whereby we have statements made by Mr. Bobby Lee, head
of the fire fighters' union. We have comments from our own County Police Department
regarding medical marijuana and uses within police and fire departments throughout
the counties of Hawaii. As you can see, all of the counties seem to be unified on their
position regarding this subject. I will not allow any employees to be under the
influence. And so well be, I'm happy to support the department and the Directors to
implement this to the fullest and reduce any potential liability issues. Mr. Ueoka, any
further issues you see that the Committee should be made aware of on this subject
prior to the official transfer?
MR. UEOKA: Nothing, Chair, just I would add, I believe there still would need to be some
agreements regarding like memorandum of agreement or something between the Parks
Department and the Department of Fire and Public Safety regarding equipment
transfers and just beach stuff, but I'm sure they can work all that out rather quickly.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Parks Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, that has been completed as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So everything is set for July 1st?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
MR. MURRAY: If I may, I did mention earlier, but vaguely about the positions that we're
asking for administratively to help us operate this Division. We will be accepting the
Ocean Safety positions, but there are no administrative positions that are coming
along with that. So I will provide that paperwork to DPS ahead of time in hopes that
they get approved so that we can take action immediately once we have the funding
- 25 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2016

and hopefully we can put that whole process and everything in order by October,
hopefully. That's the goal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So your only so-called administrative officer is one Battalion Chief
at this time?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, only one. We have no clerical staff or no support staff with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chief, we appreciate that comment and request. So,
Mr. Buenconsejo, your employees that are being relieved of responsibility over this
Ocean Safety area, what are they going to be doing and do you have, then, ability to
transfer positions?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, so basically the whole Ocean Safety will be transferred. We,
currently in Aquatics have already put those positions into play. We're currently short
as well. And with that being said, is because of the Aquatics, the way the reorg went,
positions were reallocated for the transfer; however, they were already, we were
already short. We never got the clerical that we needed from the beginning over the
past few years now that it's been going through. Fire has been the one asking for the
budget improvements or E/Ps, expansion positions and we've been sitting back and
waiting for that to happen. So we're, don't even currently have an Ocean Safety
clerical, currently, as it speaks right now. So there is nothing to transfer on that
standpoint from administratively, but all lifeguards and everyone else will be
transferred out, which is why Fire is asking for that as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Director Hiromoto, you could when we hit the cost items, you would be
able to tell us all this financial impacts from the transfer including additional
personnel for administrative costs?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, the costing does not include for additional positions. It's based on
current positions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It could be expensive, Members. Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not really. I'm looking forward to the discussions once we get into
budget. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Victorino, any questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions, just wait like Mr. White budget time to
discuss things further. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions at this time? Questions,
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And for Chief Murray, are Ocean Safety
gonna be like cross training to assist in fire-type responsibilities? Is there gonna be
some kind of mixing of that?
MR. MURRAY: No. That would be a violation between the two bargaining units.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yet, the ocean responsibilities are very similar? They
both operate. They both rescue ocean, you know what I mean, so the responsibility
per se, whether you're a fireman or a lifeguard ocean, you're both still doing equal or
very, the same type of job in that aspect?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, for that specific aspect, yes. As rescue firefighters, they are trained to
do ocean as well. And again, I talk about the timing when Ocean Safety's at the
beach, which is approximately about eight hours a day, so everything after that is us.
And prior to the development of Ocean Safety, the Fire Department was tasked with all
of that. So, we are trying to provide harmony between the two, so that we can work
together and be much more efficient and timely on those situations so we are able to
save lives, so I hope that answers your question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. It does. It does. Thank you. And I guess the,
because there's overlap in jobs, I guess, responsibilities, the possible issues in regards
to leaving coastlines unattended. I guess, is that where maybe, I mean, you're not
gonna have a firefighter sitting in a lifeguard tower, but you know, how can that be
adjusted and not having to ask for more and more and more E/Ps to address that
situation?
MR. MURRAY: Well, normally in that situation how it's done today is the beach captain will
respond to that open beach and try to fill in during that time upon their availability.
So, and these situations that we're talking about that happen on a daily basis, we're
lucky if it's just one or two people. On the larger incidents, it's a multi-jurisdiction,
multi-division response, you know, whether it be a boat or an aircraft or what have
you. We're prepared to do all of those in unison, so the daily ones provide a challenge
to our personnel and we have to make those adjustments every day so, but we're
prepared for the larger ones as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. That beach captain you mention is, I guess a,
can be a rover?
MR. MURRAY: They have a vehicle that they are allowed to respond to those areas and in
those situations that request will be made whether for equipment or personnel. That
one person either traveling with a back-up ski or just the captain itself, so all
dependent on the situation and the availability of resources.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright. Well very good. Looking forward to further
detailed discussion, Chair, on this matter. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Anything else, Mr. White? Okay.
The Chair's not gonna, we're not required to take any action on this communication,
Members. Mr. Baz, as Director of Budget requested that we have this discussion as
we prepare for Budget Session and the target is July 1, 2016 for the official
implementation of this transfer in the new Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Proposal. So if
there're no further questions for our three Directors and the Chief, I'm going to defer
this item, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This item is deferred.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ITEM 6:

COST ITEM PROPOSAL (HAWAII GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION, BARGAINING UNIT 14)
(CC 16-50)

CHAIR HOKAMA: I direct you now to BF-6, which is the money component, Cost Item
Proposal (Hawaii Government Employees Association, Bargaining Unit 14). We have a
Communication 16-50 which has an attached, proposed resolution entitled Approving
Cost Items for Unit 14, Ocean Safety Officers, along with summary of cost items. This
Committee shall review the request and see if we are going to forward and approve this
contract. So at this point, I'll have Mr. Baz give us any opening comments on this
request.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Department of Personnel Services Director
Lance Hiromoto has transmitted to you a resolution authorizing the cost items for
Bargaining Unit 14's arbitrated award. The information there is for your review. As
far as budget impact, the budget impact of the award for the current fiscal year is
minimal. The ensuing fiscal year, Fiscal Year '17, we should have some pretty
significant impacts that we can discuss, but I'll be happy to answer any detailed
questions you might have regarding either this year's implementation or the cost items
that have been presented as far as I know. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Hiromoto, any comments you can share with the
Committee at this time?
MR. HIROMOTO: Thank you, Chair. Can I just start with a little background on this cost
item? Back in 2013, Act 137 of the 2013 State Legislature established a new collective
bargaining unit to represent law enforcement officers that belong to the State and
County Ocean Safety, water safety officers. So a new Bargaining Unit 14 was created
comprised of approximately 730 full-time equivalence employees, about 400 were
deputy sheriffs with the State, about 90 conservation resource officers with the State,
about 16 harbor enforcement officers with the State and about 330 ocean safety or
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water safety officers that belong to the county. And the County of Maui has
approximately 55 Ocean Safety officers. On July 31, 2015, the Hawaii Labor Relations
Board, what we negotiated with the Bargaining Unit 14, which was represented by the
Hawaii Government Employees Association and on July, we could not come to a total
agreement on the collective bargaining agreement and on July 31, 2015, the Hawaii
Labor Relations Board notified the parties that a, that Mr. Wayne Yamasaki was gonna
serve as the impartial chairperson of a arbitration panel. The parties appointed
respective panel members, the union appointed their member, Ms. Nora Nomura, and
the employer group appointed the State Director of Human Resource Development,
Mr. James Nishimoto, to be the respective representative on the arbitration panel. The
arbitration hearing was convened on November 16, 2015 through November 20, 2015,
so approximately a week at the State Office Towers on Oahu. Deputy Corp. Counsel
Gary Murai represented the County of Maui at that hearing. Prior to the arbitration,
the interest arbitration hearing, the employer group and the union were able to come
to agreement on approximately 50 articles and what went before this arbitration panel
was 5 articles, which were salaries, compensation adjustment, differentials, temporary
hazard pay and uniforms and equipment. And the panel came out with an award and
the award, the cost of the award for the County of Maui is before you. And I can
answer any other questions that you may have with regard to this cost items. And by
law, we have to present this cost item to the, to each respective legislative body so the
State would present it to the State Legislature and City and County would give it to
the City and County County Council. My indication is that the City and County
County Council approved the cost items. I did not hear back from Kauai or the Big
Island.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, Director, our understanding is all the employers must agree or
if one employer does not agree, the contract does not move forward, is that a good
understanding?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, you know, we researched that and there's some, a older Attorney
General's opinion with regard to what happens if the, any legislative body rejects the
cost item. According to the Attorney General's opinion with regard to this type of
award, it's an interest arbitration award compared to a negotiated and ratified
contract. So this is a arbitration award. According to the Attorney General's Office,
we go back to the table to renegotiate the contract, but it has not been tested in courts
yet. It's just a AG's opinion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the AG is opining that since this is an arbitration decision, the
employer has no decision to make, they just have to pay, is that the opinion?
MR. HIROMOTO: No, that, opposite of that. The AG is saying that if any legislative body
does not approve the cost item, that we go back to the table and renegotiate this
contract. So what you have before you will start back again at step zero.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the arbitration areas of disagreement, was this more about the State
employees in enforcement side or was this about Ocean Safety?
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MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, it was for both sides because when we go to negotiation, it's...as far
as like the salaries, they're across-the-board increases. Some of the differentials may
not be applicable to County Ocean Safety, for example, gun allowance. That may be
applicable only to State employees, State law enforcement, so those type of
differentials may only be applicable to one segment of this unit. Same thing is, one of
the units, one of the items that is applicable only to the counties is the jet ski
differential. State law enforcement would not have that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Did we go through, try and mediate before we went to arbitration?
MR. HIROMOTO: Yes, we did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Interesting dilemma. Really at this point, no questions,
Mr. Chair. It just seems like a rock and a hard place, just depends on what everybody
comes out, decides, the various counties, right, Mr. Hiromoto?
MR. HIROMOTO: I beg your pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I said, this depends on what the other counties agree to or
not, right?
MR. HIROMOTO: Well, the cost items that you have before you is only for the County of
Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. But I mean the other issue you said, if one says, no,
that the AGs...right, Mr. Chair, the AG's opinion is we go back to the table and start
over again?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we're making the assumption that the Leg has to appropriate their
share of, for the State portion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's a big assumption, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, any questions on cost items? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, Chair. Thank you very much. I can see the issue here.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Your comment just now about State
appropriating their own, are you talking about the Makena contract?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Plus for the DLNR enforcement as well as their sheriffs in the Judiciary,
that's all part of this Unit 14 contract.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So, I mean, but we're, the numbers on our page is
strictly for us, Maui County?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just for County of Maui's -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --financial impact regarding the transfer. You've already heard comments
from the Chief and whatnot that they're gonna ask for expansion positions for the
administrative component, so we looking at a lot more money than what you just see
now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Right. Thank you, Chair. And so collectively,
everybody in this unit has to agree, otherwise, one group does not, AG's opinion is it
goes back to the drawing board?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Goes back to the negotiating table as we understand it from our Personnel
Director.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under the current process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And currently, we only heard from Kauai County's ocean
safety agreeing at this point?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Honolulu, right -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Hiromoto?
MR. HIROMOTO: That's correct, Chair. City and County County Council, I believe, approved
the cost items.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And no State entities, no one else within this
bargaining unit has stated one way or the other yet?
MR. HIROMOTO: Not that I know of.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Chair, personally, I feel that this unit is very worthy.
They're a definitely needed service in our community, so and yeah, it comes with a
price. I think the price that they assist in not just our visitors and locals alike, I
mean, you know, it's lives on the line, so. Anyways, Chair, it is what it is and
unfortunately we always have that hardship about not being at that table and we get
figures and like, okay, put out and pay for this. We were never there to even have any
type of say, so, I, yeah, it's frustrating when we get to this point. But thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So in the resolution it says, for FY
2017, it's an additional 1.0506 million, is that what, is that how I read that, Mr. Baz?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Member Couch. Which page are you referring to?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The Exhibit "1," the last page of Exhibit "1."
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 2 of 2, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Okay. The Fiscal Year 2017...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is an additional $1.06 million?
MR. BAZ: That's correct, yes, based on the information provided from Department of Human
Resource Development at the State level, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That covers 55 people?
MR. BAZ: Approximately, plus the 10 grant positions, so, 65.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That includes the 10 grant positions? Because the 55, that's
about a $20,000 raise per--average--individual because they moved over to the Fire
Department, is that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, not because they moved over to the Fire Department. This is a...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, that's right, they went to a different bargaining unit.
MR. HIROMOTO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's right.
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MR. HIROMOTO: A new bargaining unit was created by the 2013 Legislature and this is the
result of establishing a new collective bargaining for this new bargaining unit. So it
has nothing really to do with the transfer to Fire.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And then, the 3.50 an hour, it says, when assigned,
does that mean if somebody's assigned, there's three assigned to a beach and one of
`em is the designated jet ski operator that day, for that day that they're on the beach,
they get that 3.50?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto?
MR. HIROMOTO: If you look, the way that we had calculated that $143,080, that's the
amount that we attribute to the differential, $3.50 per hour differential.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I see 178,350 on the reso.
MR. HIROMOTO: Our understanding that the way that the Parks Department currently
assigns Ocean Safety officers to the jet ski is that they have 2 per tower and they have
7 jet skis. So, we would, so there would be like 14 operators in a day that are, would
be entitled to the differential.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Because they're on jet skis duty?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whether they're the...what'd she call the...the grabber or the
operator, both?
MR. HIROMOTO: Again, it would be how the department, you know, if it goes over to Fire
Department, I don't know how the Fire Department is going to assign the jet skis to
operators, but if there are two operators assigned to a jet ski, then, both would receive
the $3.50 an hour.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And for that day, for that shift?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Are there any retroactive, Director? Retroactive
costs involved in this change?
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MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. HIROMOTO: All of these, the salary articles, differentials, all begin on July 1st of this
year, so there, I don't believe there'd be any retro adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Also, in this Fiscal Year 2017 additional cost, does
that include all of the fringe for that -MR. HIROMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --1 million? Okay. You know, I'm like some of my
colleagues are saying that, you know, personally, I support the safety of our
community, but also, to instill the professionalism of their positions as, I guess, Ocean
Safety officers. So, if we don't approve this, are we the only County just waiting for the
approval or is there still Kauai and the Big Island, Hawaii Island?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. HIROMOTO: The only indications that I received from the other jurisdictions was from
the City and County of Honolulu, which did approve the cost items. I did not receive
any information from the State, the County of Kauai or the County of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So say we decide not to accept it, does that mean that the
City and County of Honolulu also comes back on the table, too?
MR. HIROMOTO: According to the Attorney General's opinion, yes. It would all go back to
the table.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So it would have to be a unifying, what they're looking for is
just a unifying approval?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct. All of the legislative, respective legislative bodies would have to
concur, accept the cost items and then we'd have a contract.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My understanding is this is a two-year agreement.
Is 2016, Fiscal Year 2016, the first year of that agreement?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. HIROMOTO: Yes, it is, sir.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that's why there's no two years of cost?
MR. HIROMOTO: That's correct. Well, the employees in this new bargaining unit, at least for
the County of Maui, were formally in Bargaining Unit 3 and Bargaining Unit 4 of,
HGEA also represented those two bargaining units. So the contract that was in effect
beginning July 1, 2015, for these employees, will still be in effect until June 30th of
this year. So, that's why there's no cost associated in this transmittal for this group of
employees.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So they've been receiving the increases that were awarded
under that, those negotiations?
MR. HIROMQTO: Correct. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, what would you estimate the, what were those increases over the
last two fiscal years? Were they 4 percent increases?
MR. HIROMOTO: The first year was about 4 percent. I think most contracts provided for
about a 4 percent increase in the first year.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So for Fiscal Year 2016, would they have received a 4 percent
increase?
MR. HIROMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So this is an additional, what amounts to approximately
19...what is the percentage? You know what the current base is for those 55
employees, the total -MR. HIROMOTO: Sorry.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --salary?
MR. HIROMOTO: Yeah. Sorry, I don't have the base salary for that. Unit 3 and Unit 4
received step movements in their first year, effective July 1, 2015, they received a step
movement and what's called, catch-up step movement, based on their years of service,
so, it was approximately 4, little bit more than 4 percent for the employees. So that's
what they received in the first year, FY '16. This cost item and it was because of the
arbitration panel decision to consider what was negotiated under Unit 3 and Unit 4 to
continue to June 30 of this year, they just, the panel awarded increases to this
bargaining unit effective July 1st of this year.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So essentially, this is a one-year contract?
MR. HIROMOTO: I don't...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Effectively, it's only going to apply to one year?
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MR. HIROMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No. 8 on the list appears to apply to employees that are not included in
the salary schedule, is that correct? No. 8 states, a 4 percent increase to basic rate of
pay for all employees, plus a one-time payment equal to 4 percent of new annual basic
rate of pay for employees not administratively assigned to the salary schedule.
MR. HIROMOTO: I don't believe the County of Maui has anyone that fits No. 8. These are
employees that were hired probably like on an exempt basis, not a, not through civil
service and was given a pay rate that is not on the salary schedule.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that was my next question.
MR. HIROMOTO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don't recall that we have any.
MR. HIROMOTO: Yeah. I don't think the County of Maui has any employees that would fit
No. 8.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And do you know if the salary ranges deleted in Item No. 2 apply to the
County of Maui or those DLNR positions?
MR. HIROMOTO: They do apply to the County of Maui. What the arbitration panel did was
looked at Unit 3 and Unit 4 salary schedules and used that as a base and said that,
we are going to delete SR-4 all the way to SR-10, take that out of the schedule and the
SC rates, which is even, which is the highest rate, take that out of the schedule.
Because generally, water, Ocean Safety officers and the law enforcement officers of the
State fall within SR ranges, you know, SR-10 to SR-26 or 28. Our Ocean Safety
officers start at SR-15, so we would, unless we create a new type of classification, we
won't even need to use SR-10 to SR-14. Again, our Ocean Safety officers go from
SR-15 to, I think, SR-24 or 26, maybe.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And what was the rationale for eliminating the first three steps?
Because that's a significant increase. If you just started as a Ocean Safety officer and
this new contract is implemented, you get a, my understanding is, you get a 4 percent
across the board increase, you get a three-step increase...I don't know what those
steps amount to, probably a couple thousand each?
MR. HIROMOTO: Each step is approximately 4 percent, so what you just mentioned, it's
yeah, it's around 16 percent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And on top of that, they get a one-time payment of 4 percent, is that
correct?
MR. HIROMOTO: Correct.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So essentially, if you're on the bottom of the scale, you're getting a
20 percent increase after you've just started?
MR. HIROMOTO: Actually, yeah, 16 percent, because you would move 3 steps and you
would get that 4, each step is 4 percent, so that's 12 percent and then you would get a
4 percent, so that's 16 percent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So which one are they not getting, the across-the-board or the
one-time payment?
MR. HIROMOTO: The one-time payment is for, I believe, that's the one that is awarded to
employees at the far right of the schedule that cannot move three steps.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay. Okay. Yeah, that makes sense. Thank you. Yeah, Chair, if
Mr. Buenconsejo has the salaries available for the current list of 55, I'd appreciate
receiving that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We shall forward that request, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Actually, I probably have it in the budget, but I'm...Mr. Baz, is the, are
these adjustments included in the budget or are these an addition to the budget?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. The receipt of this was right before we transmitted the budget to
Council, so I was able to put in a lump-sum appropriation for this adjustment, similar
to what I did a couple of years ago with the collective bargaining agreement, so we did
appropriate an approximate amount of funds needed for salaries and wages for this
bargaining unit increase.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And where was that placed? In...
MR. BAZ: No, it was placed in the Countywide Costs salary adjustments.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Like you did last time?
MR. BAZ: Like I did last time, yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. During the '17 Budget discussions, you'll see the '16 amounts, as well as
the '17 amounts and then, there was a interesting request from the Committee that
we, we've already, the Department of Finance already responded to. It has a very good
table that you'll be interested in. If you look at FN-1 letter, that shows all of the
collective bargaining increases and the costs increases and the cost of the fringe
benefits based on salaries and wages as well. It's pretty, it's actually appreciative that
the Committee asked that question, a very telling story.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Other questions, Members? Okay. What is before you is a cost item
proposal effective July 1, 2016. There are nine steps or nine points to this cost item,
some applicable to the County of Maui, most are, some are not, as indicated by
Director Hiromoto. So quickly, Members, of the nine points: One, they have
across-the-board increase of 4 percent. As you heard, we are deleting SR ranges 4 to
10, and 30 to SCO3. We are deleting the first three steps of the salary schedule and
adding two additional steps after the maximum step following the existing pattern of
integrated salary rates. We are re-labeling the 12 steps of the new salary schedule.
We are placing employees on the step of the corresponding pay range of the new salary
schedule, so if you're on the first step, you go on the current...currently you're on a
first step, you'll be placed on first step of the new schedule and accordingly.
Employees on the last step, Step M or the 13th step, shall be placed on the last step of
the new salary schedule, 1-time payment equal to 4 percent of the new annual basic
rate of pay for employees on the last step, Step M or 13th step, as of June 30, 2016;
4 percent increase to basic rate of pay as Mr. White just brought up for all employees,
plus 1-time payment equal to another 4 percent of new annual basic pay of rate, rate
of pay for employees not administratively assigned to a schedule, and finally, a
continuation of a step movement plan. So you add it up, it comes big the number.
And we have not entertained yet the additional cost items of the administration of this
program and additional personnel. So, Members, any additional comments or
questions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. With the, when I first read through this, I was
thinking this must be sizeable because they haven't, my recollection was they hadn't
been getting increases over the last couple of years, but hearing from Mr. Hiromoto
that they have been getting those increases along with the other units, as much as I,
you know, support Ocean Safety folks, this is a huge chunk and I'm not ready to
support it today. I'd like to have some time to look at Mr. Baz's FN-1 letter and see
what, see if there's some way that I can get myself to swallow this large a number, but
at this point, I'm not able to do that. I'd like a little more time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Understood. Any other comments or questions for the Chair, or
our three Directors and the Chief?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is there any time-sensitive issue in regards to this issue?
Do you know of any, Mr. Chair, or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: My thing is we have until the end of the current fiscal year to make a...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That'll be June 30th, then?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, maybe take it back a month if for readings of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. But that's not something if we don't, if we didn't
decide on it today or we said no or said, well, obviously if we decide, but if we don't
decide on any action, it could be brought forward later because Mr. White seems to
want more information and I believe some others may have the same concern. So
that's what, that was where my question was leading. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Until the State and our other two sister counties approve it, it is still a
question of whether or not it will be approved. So we do have some time. We don't
have a lot of time, but we have time for additional information gathering and due
diligence. So, with no objections, the Chair's going to defer this item.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This item is deferred.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And well bring it back and work with our departments as well as the Chief
so. Thank you very much, gentlemen.
ITEM 42:

TAX
CLASSIFICATIONS
ACCOMMODATIONS (MISC.)

FOR

TRANSIENT

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let's take on BF-42. This is under the description of Tax
Classification for Transient Accommodations. We have a proposed bill for an
ordinance dated February 29, 2016 entitled A Bill for an Ordinance to Classify Real
Property as "Hotel and Resort" or "Commercialized Residential" for Tax Valuation
Purposes When the Property Owner Holds a Permit Allowing Transient Vacation Rental
Use. And today we have from the Department of Finance, Mr. Teruya, our
Administrator of Real Property Taxation, along with Mr. Baz, Director of Budget.
Mr. Baz, you have anything you wish to share at this point in time?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair is going to ask, have the Staff hand out a...the
revised bill and...the article from...
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: The Committee is in receipt of a revised bill from Councilmember Crivello.
It's dated March 28th and it should be all in your binders.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. The Staff will be... can I get one of that, please?
I think I gave you my copy. The Chair has made copies and we are passing out a
response from...okay, what you...you're receiving a couple of things. One is the
revised bill. I need one of that, Michele. Okay. We're gonna take a short recess
subject to the call of the Chair. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:17 a.m.
11:19 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay. We shall come back to order. The Chair handed out
a copy of a response from Dr. Lawrence W. Boyd, University of Hawaii, Center for
Labor Education and Research as it relates to affordable housing. And his subject
was Maui Housing Supply, Demand, Property Taxes, and Affordability. The Chair had
indicated at various meetings, we'd be looking at different approaches to see how we
can impact affordability for our residents to be able to either get a rental or the ability
to purchase affordable housing. Dr. Boyd has given you his perspective. I will say it
is his perspective on how we could be, how we could consider some of his points that
he is proposing as a way to possibly have a positive impact on affordability. And he
states his reasons and he comes up with his analysis, which is basically that the
market in Hawaii is driven by offshore demand. Its influences by offshore influences
and that the benefit to the current community resident is not there. So this is
something I would like you to think about in a more macro perspective on taxation
and affordability. The proposal is a little bit more micro, a little more specific, but one
impacts the other. So with that, well start some discussion. Ill ask Department of
Finance, Real Property Tax Division if they have any opening comments they would
share with the Committee?
MR. TERUYA: Chairman, no comments at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Members, open up to allow you to either
make a comment or a question to resources, to the Chair. Ill start with Mr. White,
Vice-Chairman?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I'm still trying to digest what you handed out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's fine. Mr. Victorino, any questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Same issue, a lot to digest at this moment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we have time to read this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy to...how much time you want? Five minutes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Probably.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that enough? I'm asking? Okay, we'll stay in recess
. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:30.

11:23 a.m.
11:30 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall bring this meeting back to order. We are on BF-42
under the heading of Tax Classifications for Transient Accommodations. So I'm
opening it up to, Members, for questions, for comments at this time. Mr. Carroll, any
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, numbers, but I'll start with one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On Page 5 of the bill in Item D, it mentions prior to
May 23, 2012, why was that chosen?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I shall ask, Mr. Ueoka, are you aware of this date on Page 5?
MR. UEOKA: My, thank you, Chair. That was existing language that was already in the
ordinance from the last time when it was passed. I believe May 23, 2012 had
something to do with when the, one of the earlier rounds of conditional use permits
was granted. That was my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to know why 'cause it's such a finite date, why, what is
the significance of it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We shall put forth that request, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you, Chair. That was one of the questions,
those dates, so I guess looking for answers to that. But thank you for your handout,
Chair, and I guess it's saying that the, our housing forecast is sort of skewed in
this...well, not skewed, but I guess the way the, it's being determined is...not
abnormal...I don't know what words to use here, but basically in the end, the closing
sentence is out-of-state demands pushes up prices and it's the middle class, actually,
that is really having a tough time in affording their own homes. So, yeah, supply and
demand, the supply is high end, the demand is high end, so that leaves out all the
other working class, workforce housing, you name it types in that un-affordability
bracket and that's why we're all screaming and crying for affordable housing. So, it's
pretty clear here, Chair, and thank you for that handout. It's kind of a sad situation
and reality of sorts, but it clearly states why we're in this predicament that we're in
and I think we're here to try and address that and hopefully make some changes
accordingly because at the end, we would like to see our residents, full-time, local
residents here living in homes that choose to. So, Chair, thank you, and looking for
further discussion here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for the article. I'd also be
curious to see what the UHERO guys have to say about this article. It has some very
interesting points. And there is no question, I don't think there's ever been a question
that changes and...the changes and demand in Hawaii has been and continues to be
driven by offshore demand. Prices for homes are being driven by mainland demand.
There's no question that that's what's happening. And one item that fosters this
demand is our low property taxes all the way around. At the bottom of this thing it
says, taxing vacation rentals and offshore condo owners would increase the supply of
rental housing and lower rents. My question would be, by how much, because if you
do the math, if all 800 permits, 400 short-term rental homes and 400 bed and
breakfast homes were given out and were permitted, that amounts to 1.1 percent of
the housing on this island. What we need is the taking a look at the Maui Island Plan,
where it says we need to be constructing around 1,500 homes a year for the next 20
years and we're only doing 200 to 300. We need to fix that problem. That's the
problem. I know you're putting this out during an item about short-term rental homes
or transient vacation rental homes, but like I said, of those permitted, it would be
1 percent of the housing. So while this is a very good article, I don't know how much,
well, it has 1 percent, 1.14 percent, an issue on this specific bill. So that's my
comments on this. My question is, you know, we've been looking at some of this
testimony that's been around, that's been e-mailed to us all and I don't have any
concern, I mean, I don't have any notions about trying to figure out where we put
these units, where we're gonna tax them. We discussed it a while back. It was
Commercial, basically thought to put short-term rental homes because that's all we
were discussing at the time, in Commercial. We also have bed and breakfasts that we
have to deal with and we also have condominiums that were built long before the need
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for affordable housing that were built strictly for transient vacation rental uses and
those are included in some of these numbers here where it says 62 percent of the
mainland...or 62 percent of condos are owned by mainland people, most of that is in
our resort areas, both in Wailea-Makena and in Kapalua-Kaanapali and in between.
Those have always been Hotel/Resort, that's of the 10,000 units that we have, only
124 are actually hotels or it's less than that, right? I can't remember how many are
actually hotel properties, the rest are condominium properties that act as hotels. So
as far as this other class of dwellings, it's mainly single-family homes and it is an
industry that is worldwide, that is increasing worldwide, so we have to figure out what
we're going to do. They aren't exactly hotels, yes, they sleep people every night, but so
do long-term rentals and so do hotels, but hotels also allow for big groups to gather.
Certainly short-term rentals don't allow, I mean, we put it strictly in the law, nobody
but the people sleeping there can go there. They can't have guests come over for
dinner, or friends and relatives come over for dinner. They can't have these parties.
They can't have weddings. They can't have spas, restaurants, I mean, there's a lot of
things they can't have that hotels can have. One of the big things is, is their permit is
not transferable. Once they sell their house, whoever buys the new house has to go
back and get a new, try to get a permit. And if we're at our caps, they may be out of
luck. It's one of those things that ultimately there's going to be a cap, kind of like taxi
medallions and so that once one person sells their house, that house comes back into
a different inventory. And hotel, obviously, you can transfer, you sell the hotel to
somebody else, they still get their permits and they still go right along. So I agree with
the ability to tax somebody if they're advertising. I do have a question for Corp.
Counsel about that and we asked that in my Committee before, whether or not they
can do that. They weren't happy with that at the time, but they may be more happy
now because it's written in the Code. So that would be my first question is, the part
where we, if somebody's advertising, then all of a sudden they can be taxed at
whatever rate we decide. And it's right now it's worded as Hotel/Resort, but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. We discussed this. I don't know what discussions were had
in your Committee, so I can't say anything about that. I can tell you that I did discuss
this with Mr. Wong and already for condos, that language was existing in
348.305(C)(2)(a)(4) and we just wanted to bring parody over to the regular parcels.
And I guess by advertising just for those things, I guess the shift really has been in our
opinion that this amendment to the Code changes how we look at classification from
highest and best use and actually puts it for transient uses into actual use as opposed
to whether or not you have a permit. So that was the big distinction for our office.
Now for transient uses, you look at actual use and not whether or not permit type 1, 2,
3 or 4 is actually had by the owner. It's what are you using it for, that's what you get
taxed for, so that's the distinction. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And the follow-up on that is the
Corporation's Counsel, Corp. Counsel's concern in...oh gosh, now I have to think if we
talked about this in executive session or not now. Geez, I can't remember. Was that if
we... and please stop me if it gets to a liability issue, if we allow or we charge somebody
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a tax for a use that they're using that is illegal, that implies that we're condoning that
use. That was one of the biggest concerns.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. What I can say is, it would still be an illegal use, I would
assume, I'm not 100 percent sure what the law is saying. Each circumstance would
be different; however, Real Property Tax is going to, where, is going to, when they tax
people that they don't see on the list, inform the Planning Department that they have
changed the taxation for this certain parcel or this owner. I wouldn't say necessarily
that being taxed for actual use is condoning an activity, it's...I think it happens right
now with illegal structures like or structures that don't have building permits. I
believe they tax them for them and report them to the building permit department,
that type of thing, so it's an actual use thing. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. That was one of the big things in my Committee on just
short-term rental homes, so if the Department can, if the Corporation Counsel says
they're okay with that, then, I'd be willing to consider that one. So long as, and I
believe it's listed in here, and if it isn't, I would like to put it back in, that RPT
Department notifies Planning that they've got this use, so therefore, they're taxing
these people at this use and it appears that they don't have a permit. Or is RPT even
looking to see if they even have a permit here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. At this point, I believe they work, the current way it is right
now, I believe they do check a list from Planning Department, who were permitted
operators. I think moving forward, they'll probably keep that same standard, but
again, it's a actual use taxation system now, so it's not gonna be driven by the
permits. So I'm not sure how RPT would work it, but they have assured our office that
they will work with Planning. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's it for now, Mr. Chair, I've got plenty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for this article. You
know, it's interesting when you compare the Los Angeles and the median residential
big cities. Many of us think we have high taxes, but compared to what has come out
per a $1,000 valuation, while Los Angeles and the rest of the U.S. certainly charges
high property tax rates. Today and when you listen to, when you go back into the
history of Hawaii, the lands were worked on and used, like our farmers have testified.
Today, lands are a commodity and that's the obvious reason why our local families
have a problem of affordable homes. But not taking away from what the intent of this
or amendments to the existing bill is, again, I would like to stress what Mr. Ueoka had
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mentioned, the highest and best use of the dwelling or the property. And it is obvious
as far as vacation rentals, I have a hard time distinguishing what's a commercial
residential? Is it a store? Is it a, what type of business are we commercializing with
the STR and... or do we look at a dwelling that you're having visitors stay in for an
overnighter or up to 180 days or less? So for that reason, I look at why we need to
relook at the tax valuation or perhaps there needs to be more tweaking or
classification for a, specifically for the STR classification. And this is in hopes for us to
regard and tax as such for the highest and best use. I think there might be questions
on the farmers who came in to testify, too, and perhaps we would have to sort of still
tweak this to how the STR dwelling can be taxed accordingly and not take away from
the complete farm, actual farming that's been done. If there is truly the farming that
we need to or, to protect, then, maybe we need to work with the Real Property Tax
people or how do we assess it as such. So this is why I'm the bad girl who decided to
recommend these amendments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair sees this as an opportunity for us to start prior to
the budget process whether or not we want to retain or look at revising the various
PITT codes and taxation categories. Before I recognize Mr. White, I think the
testimony was very productive today. One of the things is on this proposal you have
presented to us, one way then to address it is to take out the hotel component of the
classification or taxation category and create something that is more, that fits this
current time, than trying to keep placing things in a category that was designated
about 40 years ago when we were in a different situation, different environment.
There were different major economic drivers of this County. And so, you know, maybe
it's time for us to start revising those PITT codes and categories to fit the current times
and needs of this County, than continue to put it into old cells that limit us on how we
can approach this type of taxation issues and minimize the ability to be more creative
and innovative so that taxation can be as fairly as possible. So do not be limited
under the current cell structure, Members. I thought the testimony was, again,
productive. It was helpful. And for me, I'm looking at ways that, to try and see if we
can make revisions so that one of you with some innovative proposal can present that
and have us consider that as part of a, how we're gonna pay for a lot of the increases
we are faced with the new fiscal year, so I just share that. Mr. Teruya, before I ask
Mr. White, would you say that that is something you would be open to as far as
revising and looking at different ways of addressing the categories and Code, PITT
areas of the current taxation process?
MR. TERUYA: Thank you, Chairman. I think this discussion has been discussed before
several years back about separating hotel from resort because they are very two
different entities and they move at different rates. The hotel component is relatively
stable, but in the event of a disaster, it could be very volatile. The secondary market
of short-term rentals move differently from true hotels, so when the overall
classification either rises or falls, there's a class hit harder than others because some
may fall faster than the other component, so moving the two sectors apart, I could see
or support. I mean, it's not my recommendation, but it's probably a very good
discussion to provide that opportunity to separate the two. The current amendment
as, to take out TVRs from Commercial is something that we would recommend or we
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can support only because Commercial is more mercantile. It's not to, not, doesn't
really fit our Code. There is a location for anything under 180 days. Unfortunately,
it's titled Hotel and Resort. It should be entitled something differently, but it is what it
is, so I can support that because it brings more consistency to our Code, Chairman.
And if there's any more questions, I can be more than happy to answer at this time.
Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. There are parts of this bill that I think makes some
good sense. We've had the discussion, as Mr. Couch mentioned in our Planning
Committee with respect to charging people who are advertising or operating an illegal,
charge them at the Hotel rate. I think that makes some sense because there's, we're
finding we have limited ways in which to provide some consequences in that area. I'm
not sure how I feel about separating hotels from condos because they're, the majority
of the condos are similar uses to the hotels and of course whenever you split, the
question is, okay, so who's rates gonna depart the train station and in which
direction? So I think that's always a little bit of a challenge, but you know, we have
some additional issues. As I normally do when I get e-mails, I go and look up the
various properties and I found some interesting things. And I won't name names, but
the first one I looked up the owners actually own three contiguous lots. On each lot,
there are two structures. One lot has a Homeowner designation, there's two
structures there, so one could be a, one is obviously their residence, the other was
either a short-term rental or a long-term rental. I don't, and I can't find out who's
permitted and who's not, but of the... so you have one lot that is the Homeowner
designation. You have a second lot which is Commercialized Residential, which my
understanding is you have to live on that lot in order to get Commercialized
Residential. But both, all three properties are owned by the husband and wife, so I'm
not sure how you can get Commercialized Residential on one and Homeowner on the
other. And then the third parcel is Commercial. Then I looked at another property
and that was, it's a condominiumized property on oceanfront. One of the, and it's, the
lot is three condominiumized parcels. And one is Apartment, one is Hotel/Resort and
one is Commercial. So I think we've got all kinds of distinct challenges when we start
dealing with this. I do think it's something worth further discussion, but there's lots
of challenges as you all, as you know once we go down the road of looking at tax
issues. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that interesting findings of your due diligence. One thing
that we do in this County is our land rate and our building rate is basically the same.
The County of Hawaii, I believe, has different tax rates for land and building and the
Chair is, for this year, is open to look at different rates for building versus land. That's
one way to see if we can adjust the taxation area to make sure that everybody pays
their fair share. So I'm going to look at rate, a different rate than the land for the
buildings as another way to potentially have a positive impact on affordabilities so
that's back on the table. Mr. Victorino, questions, sir?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not wanting to stand between lunch and a long
dissertation, if you would allow me, I would rather have my comments after lunch
because I know some people really need to go pretty quick now, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I know a couple of Members need to leave, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. So, I'll wait if you, with your permission, to say what
I need to say after lunch.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, this is important that we're not gonna just rush this. This is
an important issue that needs a lot of more open discussion so we can kinda set the
parameters, more finite so that we can get good testimony on whatever is the final or
the new draft that we might want to consider regarding this subject. So stating that,
then, we're gonna go into a recess. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. If you don't mind, before we break,
unfortunately I will be leaving for the rest -CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --of the day and your Staff and yourself are aware, so I won't
be in the further discussions. So just real briefly though, I wanted to chime in on
Mr. White's due diligence as my office also did so to look up some of our testimony
that was sent in. And in one particular case, 'cause I'm sure you hear me say a lot
that our long-term rentals have been taken out due to these types of practices and on
a particular website, it does state, after years of long-term rentals, we remodeled this
house and wanted to allow visitors to rent instead. So that's clearly in black and
white on their site, they had done just that. On another one and I think Mr. White
went to the same property with the three cottages, added up with a rent per night or
whatever and it's over $16,000 that they make. And in this particular case, this
person is saying, just the little guy and don't over tax us, the little guy. It's quite a not
so little guy price, but anyways, Chair, I just wanted to chime and thank Mr. White for
also digging in to see where the comments are coming from. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just to add a little more to that. You know, but I think it's important,
you know, we have some very important new tools with the property, within the
Property Tax Department and one of the other e-mails stated that they're a certain
type of farm and so we can go back and look at pictometry in earlier years. So I went
back and looked, well, there's clear farming in 2010, but taking that same, taking a
photo of the same property in 2015, there's absolutely no indication that any of the
previous farming survived and has continued to be practiced. So, again, people come
and send us letters thinking we're not gonna look, but there are those of us who are
gonna look and it's disconcerting to find that what they're telling us in the e-mail is
simply false. So I just, that doesn't make our job any easier. So thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood. Okay. Thank you. We shall continue this, so we'll be in
recess
1:30. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:00 p.m.
1:31 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall return to order. This is the continuation of the
Council's Committee on Budget and Finance meeting of March 29, 2016. Members, at
the recess, we were still in discussion on BF-42, which is under the heading of Tax
Classifications for Transient Accommodations and part of the discussion is a proposed
bill for an ordinance from Ms. Crivello. We welcome Mr. Guzman to the meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I apologize, I haven't been feeling well. I'm
not sure whether it's budget season or the flu season. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we wish you a, good health, Mr. Guzman, and we understand.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So no apologies required. Again, we will all try to support each other's
good health practices. Okay. Again for Mr. Guzman's information, we did have some
handouts for your additional information, Mr. Guzman, so when time permitting, if
you can review those documents. Okay, Members, at the recess, the Chair did give
some comments about ways we could look at this and during the break, one of the
things that I was considering and would share with you now is that maybe in the
future, one way to deal with this is place anything less than 180 days...is that the
magic number, Mr. Ueoka? Anything under the, whatever is the 6-month target, I
would be open to maybe have everything under Commercial Residential and adjust the
rate accordingly. Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Thank you very much, Chair, and I am really excited about the
ideas that you're tossing out. I think it's good that we take a look at it and possibly
come up with some other ideas. But, you know, this idea of the magic 180 days that
you just mentioned, that's something that bothers me, too. You know, out there in the
public, a lot of people do not understand the definition of long-term and short-time
term. There are oodles and oodles and oodles of people renting places on a
month-to-month basis and that's all illegal, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: According, depending upon, I would say, their permitted uses, is that a
good way to describe it, Mr. Ueoka or Mr. Teruya? Depending what is their zoning and
the permitted uses regarding the month-to-month scenario that Ms. Baisa proposed or
brings up?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. The transient use definition comes from Title 19, I believe,
it's a planning definition and it goes with the, you know, with exceptions, of course,
anything less than 180 days is a transient use. Typically, you know, transient uses
are only allowed in certain zoning, so and I'm not sure what that month, how that
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month-to-month lease reads, if you know the...I don't know. We probably, it would, it
might be contingent upon what the agreement says, also.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, that's why I'm interested in it because we're talking about
180 days being the magic thing and if people are not being given 180-day contracts or
leases, then, to me, it's all short-term rentals. Because month to month is just that,
you're here for 30 days and if we like you, we keep you, we don't like you, you're out.
So I think that's something we have to be very careful with because -CHAIR HOKAMA: You bring up a good point. That's a good point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --it would have a tremendous effect on our rentals and we
already have problems. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you bring up a very valid concern, Ms. Baisa, so thank you.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I can kind of answer that, some of
Ms. Baisa's concerns. I discussed that with Mr. Rapacz, the Zoning Enforcement
Administrator, and his comment was that if there was a six-month lease to begin with,
long-term rental, six-month lease, and then once that lease expired, month to month
is okay because the initial six months is fine. But if you come straight in, month to
month then that is not, under the current definition, that is not a, considered a
long-term rental.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right, right, right. No, I appreciate that. And that's why when you
look at the article I handed out to you from the University of Hawaii, you will notice
that the doctor in his comments mentioned about one way to address the short term,
but don't forget it comes with the balance of on the long-term side which is, his thing
was, if you plan to be draconian on the short-term side, you must consider--that is
how I read his article--to give some incentive to the property owner to consider the
long-term, whereby the property owner then has a fmancial benefit to consider putting
on the market or in the community affordable rental or leasing. So that's something
that, you know, I wanted to make sure that we didn't lose in the discussion is that as I
understand from the University's proposal, they must be both sides of the scale. It
cannot just be on one side, on the taxation side with nothing on the benefit of the
owner. It must be a balanced approach. So I just wanted to share that comment
because I think that is something that we need to be very cognizant and keep in mind
when we look at the issue of taxation on both sides of the coin. Ms. Crivello, any
questions or comments regarding the proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not at this time, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White, any further questions or comments, sir?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, thanks, sir.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino? I'll give Mr. Guzman some time to review the documents
before we ask him for his thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, thank you, Chair, and I, again, this is going to be a
very interesting discussion point. Yes, I believe for such a long time our tax structure
has needed some revisions. We've tried in certain areas and been successful at times
and others, you know, have met more resistance. And resistance isn't a bad thing. It
really makes us think before we react, before we act upon the issue, so I think that's
important. And I gotta remember, remind our colleagues, too, that we're very
fortunate. As a County, we're not responsible like many of our other colleagues, our
other sister counties, for hospitals, for schools, for what you call that, the judicial
system, sheriffs. All of the counties, for example, because my son lives in Vegas, I'm
very familiar with Clark County and the various entities that go about. They've got
elections for every position you can think of from judges on down. And much of it is
paid for directly out of your homeowner's tax or your real property tax, whichever way
you want to call it. And we were looking at the comparables, I think I saw over here,
that if you had a house that was $1 million and in L.A., you would pay something in
the area of $11,700, where in Maui, you pay $5,400, right, that's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: In the example, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's no page numbers, but, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In the example from the doctor, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, my son in Vegas pays for his house, which is
just about the same level and it's close to $13,000 a month, $13,000 a month. You
heard? No let it fall down, Mr. Ueoka, but 13,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: A month?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A year, a year. I said a month, sorry, I meant a year. If it
was a month, I don't think he'd live there very long. But again, they don't have any
state income tax. There's the good's and bad's about living many places. He has no
state income tax. Take that into consideration. Right? But and I apologize, I didn't
mean, it says, annually, here and I said, monthly. I apologize. But with that being
said, definitely some improvements in our tax structure should be made and I
believe...and I hate when I have to agree with Mr. Couch because that really hurts me,
but lack of inventory is really our first problem. We can do a lot of other mandate
solutions, but without more housing out there, housing not gonna come plummeting
down. And so we need to, that's another conversation, I don't want to get into that,
but we do need a lot more housing. And I think we have, as you can see in this, our,
the page before that, what we charge hotels, what we charge timeshares, what we
charge commercial versus what we charge homeowners. There's a big disparity,
tremendous disparity and I think our homeowners are really, to be perfectly honest,
the direct benefactors. We talk about farmers, we talk about other issues, but us, we,
as homeowners are the direct benefactors, Mr. Chair. But I do admit, gas prices are
-50-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 29, 2016

still extremely high. Everything else we gotta buy in this town is really expensive. So I
say, you know, we need to look at this. Again I hate to agree with Mr. Couch, but
there're some things in this bill I like and there's a lot of things that I don't like and so
we need to flush it out. But I will wait for your leadership and my colleagues' ideas to
bring forward what I call the change that is necessary for this County. We can't keep
walking the same path because we know it's not working right now. Here's a chance
to make a, what I call, a real improved, positive change in our whole structure. So we
wait to see, Mr. Chair, how this all pans out. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions at this time, sir? Thank
you. Ms. Baisa, anything else at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No. I think we'll wait and see where this goes. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I want to thank Ms. Crivello for
bringing this item to our attention and up for discussion because it has generated a
lot of good discussion. I do want to say that we did talk about and I can't remember
which committee it was, I think it might have been yours, Mr. Chair, about potentially
in the taxation of all different types of categories, one of the things was there was talk
about and he talks about it here on the last page of your report, homes over a certain
value, I think we've bandied about if a home is over $2 million, the first $2 million,
they get the homeowners exemption and the Homeowner rate, anything over that is a
residential, some sort of residential rate. That, if that is legal, it appears that
something like that is legal, according to this report, but I would love to ask
Mr. Ueoka. I know he hasn't had a chance to, you know, consider the legal
ramifications of that last paragraph just before the summary. This guy says it's legal,
but you know, I don't know that he's a lawyer. I know Mr. Ueoka is a top-notch
lawyer, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, do you have a copy of that report we handed out to the
Members? Because I think it would be fair if you have a sense of what Mr. Couch is
asking you to comment on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So while he's reading that, you know, because it's a paragraph
long, the other issue is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So before you move on, Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so that Mr. Ueoka is clear on what you are asking him to comment on,
could you please restate your...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The last two paragraphs of the last page just before the
summary -- 51 -
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MR. UEOKA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --talks about essentially legality and constitutionality of, sort of
discriminating against different types of homeowners in taxation. So that's one thing,
Mr. Chair, while he's looking at that. The other is you're right, we gotta figure out
what to do with long-term rentals. I give you an example, my own example. Got a
house, renting it out long-term, paying the same taxes as somebody who lives in that
house, either, doesn't live in it at all, but doesn't rent it out or only lives in it a couple
months out of the year, paying the same amount of taxes, but they're not providing a
long-term rental for somebody whereas we are. So is that the same? Right now we're
taxing the same and I'm fine with that, it's just that is that something, is that an
incentive for more people to do long term? If you either raise the empty one or lower
the full one, either way, that may make more incentive for keeping the houses
occupied. So those are the two questions I have right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. In concept, I believe you could do that for higher valued
homes. The details of it would, might be where you get into the sticking point. So
without just blanket saying, yeah, it's okay, of course we need to take a look at the
legislation, but in concept...`cause you could also look at not giving the homeowners
exemption for certain values, you know, there's a lot of various ways to deal with it,
but... so in concept, yes, it's okay. For approval as to form and legality, we'd have to
read it and see how it works first. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I mean, this apparently is gonna be a long
conversation, so I'm not sure where you want to go with it today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I wanted us to have very good discussions because during the
budget process, I am going to make some recommendations -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on rates and that's why I've been upfront, that I am gonna even look at a
different rate for building versus land because that is another way to approach this
disparity regarding taxation on the residential side.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I agree with that. I think that's another potential way to
go. Lumping anything over, under 180 days into the same category might be a little
bit different because there are all different types of other uses as we've been
discussing. So that one I would like to see if we can massage that a little bit and
because hotels are less than 180 days. Condo hotels are less than 180 days, I mean,
there are all kinds of different things and plus, one thing that we really haven't
mentioned in here that is very important to this island at least is we have a traveling
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nurse program and traveling doctors program where they come in for three months
out of the year or they rotate every three months. It's hard for them to find places
things going on and
because they have to have six-month leases. So there's
other things. If that were easier for people to be able to do that, then we might have
more people coming in to help out with our healthcare. Those are some things that
are happening as well, not only nurses but, and doctors, but and construction issues
as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you bring up a very...valid points that we need to take into
consideration, Mr. Couch. So again, you know, nothing is off the table per se because
I think we should look at everything as best as we can. But the Chair is gonna make
some adjustments in taxation this year because I won't wait for the State or others to
address the affordability. We know we can make adjustments through our authority
and our ability on the budget, so I'm gonna make sure that we exercise our authority
for what is the best benefit for the general community. This law as being proposed by
Ms. Crivello, to me, is I'm gonna be looking at from a macro point of view. I don't
support laws that would just take care one property owner. So this will not be crafted
for a property owner. This will be crafted for the class of properties. Any questions for
the Chair or Mr. Teruya, Mr. Ueoka or Mr. Baz? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well really for you, Mr. Chair, first and foremost and then,
maybe for Mr. Teruya. You know, setting different rates for structures versus land, I
concur with that. I think that's not a, that's long overdue. I don't think that's a bad
thing. However, how you assess the value is gonna be really a challenge. Because in
the insurance industry, if you have a house that's 50 years old, that's 2,500 square
feet and right next door you have another house that's 4,500 square feet, but built 5
years ago, we cannot distinguish between amounts due to the fact that when it burns
down -CHAIR HOKAMA: Replace the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you replace it. You replace it. Unless you carry ACV,
which very few people would ever wanna do, so long as you get RC, replacement costs,
you build it as like with today's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: You need to help us understand some of the, your synonyms and whatnot
you're using, Mr. Victorino, because I know you're very maa to that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --`cause that's in your profession, but for the rest of us if you could help
US.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay. RC is, okay, let me go back then. RC means
replacement costs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, got it.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ACV is actual cash value.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that's where it becomes a real challenge
because the 2 houses, though 40 years in difference in age, if something happens to
either one, you replace it with today's materials, today's labor cost and today's
ordinances, big difference at that point. So when you start assessing homes for tax
purposes, that has to all be part of it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Geographically, it also has to be important to understand
that Kihei two, one mile from the beach and Wailuku where you're five miles from the
beach, or at least a swimmable beach maybe, not all of the beaches, right, makes a big
difference also. Oceanfront property in Paukukalo is a little different than oceanfront
property in Kaanapali. So, you know, again I hear all of these other pieces being put
in, but there's more that needs to be discussed. There's a lot more that needs to be
discussed. And I hope that the discussion will not impact-fully hurt the ones we want
to help or protect most diligently our long-term, multi-generational families. Those are
the ones, for some reason, we need to continue. Those, like Mr. Teruya and his family,
who want to live here and raise his family now, they're the ones being pushed away.
So I just wanted to bring up those issues because I think they're very important.
They're going to be very relevant as we go on this discussion. And finally, I don't think
there's a magic bullet, but I think we can fmd some, what I call, compromise in this
whole issue where that when we walk out of this room at the end of budget season
this year, that we be a lot fairer in our tax structure, that everyone of us walk out
feeling that this is the way best suits Maui County. And I'll be all for if this helps us
bring down the price of housing, apartments, rentals, every aspect, I'd be very pleased
to walk out of this room in my final days knowing that we got that much done. But
again I go back to my first statement, we need inventory. And until we get inventory,
the rest of this battle is not gonna be won very easily. It's going to be long and
arduous. We put more inventory, combined with all of these changes and with more
inventory means, what? More revenue because if you look at a piece of land sitting
there vacant, I don't care what best use you put on it, it's still not gonna get what an
apartment, a house, a condo, some structure which is being utilized by people. Right,
Mr. Teruya? They would get a much higher income stream for the County of Maui. So
we have these...you know, you want to keep everything open? Well, a lot of open
space means very little money coming into the County, very little money that comes
into the County. We gotta have this balance. I think I've said enough. Thank you
very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. No, as I said, nothing's off the table.
Everything is on, including things we haven't talked about yet. But part of the, your
point on valuations that you gave at the beginning of your comments, I would say that
Mr. Teruya is pretty much required to follow yellow book standards on valuations. It
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has to be something they can go back and defend, so I'm not that concerned about
valuations. He's gonna have to follow standard, recognized practices within the
industry. We are not gonna set up our own standards. He's gonna follow standards
that is one, defensible and legal to our appraisal requirements as well as the
certification of value for taxation purposes and that's how this Chair is gonna be
approaching those type of issues. Again it is a discussion that is not gonna end today,
so if there are no further questions for the Chair or for our resource people, Mr. Baz,
Mr. Teruya, Mr. Ueoka, the Chair is planning to defer this because I want this to be
kept alive because the Chair still feels there's merit to moving a forum forward during
the budget process. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know, I'd just like to point out that this, tax
issues are always a real challenge. You know, you've brought forth earlier something
that would have brought some fairness to an issue near and dear to my heart and
near and dear to my pocketbook, but just to put it in perspective. Mr. Victorino
brought up how much we're charging in certain areas, but one of the breakdowns that
we don't look at very often is the tax, the effective tax rate based on market value. And
as I've said before, you know, the market value of my property is about, was about
940,000, it's now 1.2 million. So my, but my tax, my value for tax purposes is
$37,000. So because I get the tax, you know, the assessed value break from the ag
value, plus the homeowner exemption, plus the Homeowner rate, if I take my taxes
divided by the, divided by my market value, I'm paying 63 cents per thousand.
Whereas in every other category, the rate you see is the rate they pay. So if it's
Commercial at 6.60, they pay 6.60 per thousand. I'm paying 63 cents per thousand. I
don't think that's fair and we tried to fix that a couple of weeks ago and didn't get
anywhere. But I, if you take a look at the homeowner exemption, if you take the total
taxes that we generate from Homeowners category and divide it into the gross value of
the Homeowners category, the effective rate is I think about $1.70 per thousand. So
that compares to Residential where a lot of our rentals are and I can't remember
the...5.40 or something like that? So it's about, homeowners are paying a third of the
taxes that people who are renting are paying because if you're renting a property,
you're paying the taxes. And so it's just, you know, again it's one of those things
that's, it's always tough to change, but it's certainly something we need to discuss and
flesh out a little bit more. So I appreciate Ms. Crivello bringing this up, not that this is
gonna be exactly what happens, but at least it continues that discussion that we
should be having on how we tax and whether it's truly fair or not. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anything else at this time, Members? Mr. Guzman, I'm sorry,
let me offer you your opportunity to share any comments or if you had some
questions, we'd be happy to have it entertained.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, Chair, it seems that the Members have deliberated and
vetted this through and still come up with additional issues. The one thing that
probably stands out in my, I'm just reading through it is that Section D, so I take it
from the Corporation Counsel that May 23, 2012 is the effective date of the ordinance?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. No, that's a, is basically a provision that's already in the
Code right now.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: It's kinda grandfathering in those units that had some types of permits. My
understanding is that May 23, 2012 was the date the current STRH laws went into
effect.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, the current, yeah, okay -MR. UEOKA: Something...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --when it came into effect. Okay.
MR. UEOKA: That's my understanding. I haven't really looked into it. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anyone else? Before we dispose of this item for this meeting,
one of the things that I also forgot to mention is, if we choose to do something with
this proposal and I say, if, one also opportunity the Council has is to set effective
dates. So if implementation and whatnot, current law has issues, we still could move
this forward and have this effective date one year from passage, two years from
passage. It's not required to be effective upon approval because for certain things, if it
does move forward, we need to consult with the department and the division upon its
implementation requirements, is there additional cost factors that we are totally
unaware of, is there a need to be reprinting portions of the County Code for public
information and access to the revised law. There are many factors involved in
anything we do, so again it still needs a lot more discussion. There's still more
opportunities for you to come up with some innovative ways. If you have areas of
issue that you already know about in the current proposal, please prepare to have it
shared with the rest of the Committee at the appropriate time so that we can move
forward on a more efficient basis if you are clear on what you are unhappy with or
what you would like to see as part of another discussion. If there are no questions for
the Chair, with no objections, the Chair will be deferring Item BF-42.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This item is deferred.
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ITEM 54:

DISTRIBUTION OF COUNTYWIDE ADMINISTRATIVE AND
SUPPORT COSTS TO COUNTY DEPARTMENTS (CC 15-89)
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CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you now to BF-54. It is under the title of Distribution of
Countywide Administrative and Support Costs to County Departments. We do have a
Communication No. 15-89, from Mr. Agsalog, which is a report he has transmitted
made by Matrix Consulting Group. And in that, he has two transmittals. One is the
Full Cost Allocation Plan, Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Actuals and OMB A-87 Compliant
Cost Allocation Plan, Fiscal Year 2011/2012 Actuals for the County of Maui. Mr. Baz,
any opening comments before I ask Mr. Walker? Thank you, Mr. Teruya.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So before you is two, one communication with two
different documents attached to it. One is the Full Cost Allocation Plan that was
prepared in 2014 and one is the OMB A-87 Compliant Cost Allocation Plan, and for
those of you who have dealt with Federal grants before, you know that the A-87
Compliant one is related specifically to overhead costs that are allocated to Federal
grants so it's a different set of criteria that's created. We do have the Deputy Director
of Finance here maybe to go over what these plans entail and how they were developed
and answer...we can both answer any questions you may have, Mr. Chair. If there is
anything specific you want us to go over that we missed, maybe, just let us know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Mr. Walker, good afternoon.
MR. WALKER: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We are happy to hear your opening comments regarding this item.
MR. WALKER: Just a couple of brief ones. Mark Walker, Deputy Director of Finance,
Committee Members. We had discussed this previously, I think in this Committee
within the year and if memory serves, there was some grumbling from various
departments on what they were allocated at the end of the day. They didn't think it
was fair. They thought it was too high and I think there were some questions among
the Committee Members about how the plan was arrived at and the numbers it used.
So again we're here to discuss what we do have now. I will let you know that in our
Finance Budget Proposal this year, which actually you'll hear tomorrow, we have, we
will be requesting additional funds to redo this Cost Allocation Plan now that
everybody understands, including the various departments and department heads,
what their answers to the consultant's questions might or might not do to their, I
mean, we want the truth, obviously, but some said, oh, I didn't understand or I didn't
know and whatever, so we are gonna be requesting additional funds to redo this
allocation full cost, allocation plan and if you believe that's worthy, then that's
something you'll pass out. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So you're still having internal issues with some of your
departments, especially with this upcoming budget consideration, Mr. Walker,
regarding the allocation of the cost? There's still some areas of discussion if I can say
it that way?
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MR. WALKER: Yeah, I mean, I've heard it. I mean especially when the plan first came out.
They went, oh, wow, not that much...us? We don't, you know, we don't use those
internal services that much and so, obviously, the previous plan hadn't been updated
for ten-plus years and so, there was, cost has certainly risen over that time. They
were very surprised with the jump in what they were being allocated for overhead
expenses. So here's an opportunity I guess to redo the plan with, because the
information they're using for this plan was 2011/2012 actuals. Now there'd be a
chance to update those numbers to more current numbers. I would think they'd be
probably the 2014 numbers, maybe '14/'15.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is a, I would say best practice from a management's personnel
regarding frequency of updating these overhead cost, what would you say, Mr. Walker,
every three to five years is a reasonable cycle?
MR. WALKER: Yeah. I would think five years on the outside. I mean, typically, I would
probably say that every two years is too much, but given the fact that we hadn't done
it in ten and then there was some grumbling, and I, oh, I didn't understand, I think it
might merit another pass and see if the numbers change markedly. And then if that
passes muster, then I would say, you know, every five years or so probably is seems
fair and reasonable. I don't know of any particular standard out there, but that seems
logical and reasonable to me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there any sense from, since we do Statewide contracts from a
Statewide/employer's/Council perspective, to have some unified overhead cost
because we deal with the same contracts? You know, and then, of course each
employer will have its own unique adjustments, but we all work off the same contract,
the same percentage of increases, they're classified by contracts, you know, they're all
in the various units with collective bargaining representation, we ratify the contract,
so is there certain things that from a Statewide perspective makes sense for us and
then we just adjust the unique cost factor that just deals with this County?
MR. WALKER: The Budget Director's a lot smarter than I am.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, I know this, I mean, you know this is not a fair question, but I
mean, if you see there are potential benefits of that approach, you know, share it and
if you say there's more disadvantages than advantages, so we don't want to go down
that path. I mean I just ask because again this Committee has been asked to look at
certain, different aspects of the contract and my thing is, we have a Statewide
contract. And I'm not interested in making Maui County an independent employer
apart from the Statewide agreements.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'll take a stab at that. So, you know, just taking a step
back, this Cost Allocation Plan is a, basically, a roadmap that shows us what the
overhead costs are for the different functions. And we have central service
departments, we have providers and then we have the grantee departments, the
receivers. And so this is a way to divvy up those central service provider departments
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like the Council...you know, the County Council is one of those central service
departments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So like Finance, Procurement Office is a central service because Mr. King
and his division services all departments.
MR. BAZ: Correct. So if you look at Page 32 of the Full Cost Allocation Plan, it details out
the central service departments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: County Council, you know...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this the OMB Compliant Cost Allocation Plan?
MR. BAZ: No, the Full Cost Allocation Plan is generally what we apply.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: The overhead rates that this Cost Allocation Plan that we use for budgeting
purposes for our proposed budget is based on the Full Cost Allocation Plan. So
Page 32, you can see there, it's got the central service department providers, County
Council, Office of the Mayor, Management, Corporation Counsel, Auditor's Office, the
Clerks' Office, Finance, Admin, Treasury, Purchasing, you know, Personnel Services,
Risk Management, Finance Accounts, IT Services, you know, the list goes on and on,
basically there, but that page is what the Central Service Departments that provide
services to the other areas are. The costs that you see in the fourth column there,
Expenditures, are based on the actual expenditures from Fiscal Year 2012. They
looked at our CAFR of 2012 for those departments...the expenditures for these
activities that we're going to be then trying to recoup the cost for is that $128.3 million
there, in expenditures. Then, there are some adjustments. You can see the first
adjustment is for Fixed Assets. Because we are a government entity that does not
apply depreciation in the way that normal entities do. That fixed asset cost
adjustment is basically the depreciation costs and then there's some negatives in there
for different credits and different things that...we went through, well the consultant
went through the different central service agencies, provider agencies and said, okay,
well, there's a certain function of that, maybe that program that doesn't apply to the
whole County, right, it shouldn't be then allocated those costs out. And so those are
reduced from the, that, most of those are reductions of the cost adjustments other
than the, that depreciation. And then you have a total that's going to be then taken
and disbursed out to the receiving agencies or receiving departments that are gonna
be paying the bills for Council, for Mayor, for Corporation Counsel, for my office,
different things like that, right. So as we go through the next, you know, the next
section is all of the different agencies and department, programs that are receivers,
right. So you got a couple of pages of those. And then it describes a little bit about
the plan itself, there's some terms in here that you can use, you can see, and goes
through each department and details out, you know, their structure, some of the
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incoming costs as well as the outgoing expense details. It's 250 pages of that.
There's, most of the question comes in about Countywide costs because those are the
ones that are most critical and the largest numbers that gets allocated out. And so we
try very hard to make sure that that's appropriate. There was a concern that the
workers' compensation wasn't being distributed properly and that maybe the
Department of Water Supply was getting double charged because they pay their own
workers' compensation and there was a listing in here for workers' compensation for
Department of Water Supply, but when you look at the details of it, that, what they
paid in workers' compensation cost is actually credited back to them so they're not
being double charged. It's a very intricate, detailed document that is basically just a
plan, right. When it comes down to it, this is what we utilize to charge the overhead
costs reimbursement to the General, basically it's the General Fund, right. So when
the Department of Water Supply or Public Works Highways fund activities or other,
you know, Environmental Management, either Sewer Fund or Solid Waste Fund, any
of those special revenue funds, we want to make sure that the General Fund is...well,
we want to either express what the General Fund is subsidizing to those special
revenue funds and try to recoup it or not. You know, it's a conscious decision that the
Council would make on setting the appropriation of the overhead that we are
recouping those costs into the General Fund. And it's not something in law that says
you have to, but the Mayor's Proposed Budget is based on this so that we are making
sure that we allocate appropriately those centralized costs that are funded out of the
General Fund and then can get recouped in there. I know your, the Committee
requested some detailed breakdown of that and we're gonna be providing that to you
shortly as well, so you'll have that detailed information. But it's basically the, again
it's the conscious decision that we are making to try to allocate the costs of running
the County or running that different, that program to the correct department that
runs it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Walker?
MR. WALKER: You know the additional benefit is that you get a true, you know, assuming
the numbers are correct, you get a true cost of the operations of each of the different
departments. And so it's incumbent or and the goal of course is to get these numbers
as accurate as possible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. No, we understand the purpose of the cost allocation. I'm
assuming the consultant, as it regards to the County Clerk, knows that every other
year, there's a big difference in appropriations and responsibilities because every other
year, Clerk's takes over the requirement of elections and so there's additional
personnel, additional expenditures. And so I'm assuming that the consultant made
the appropriate adjustments on the allocation of every other year because of the
election requirements that the Clerk is bound to provide the community. Again I'm
just making certain assumptions, but I'm stating that that's an area that I hope was
addressed correctly.
Questions, Members, or comments regarding this cost
allocation? You already heard Mr. Walker saying that he's gonna request an update
on the allocation numbers. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. What is the projected cost of the new study?
MR. WALKER: We're asking for a budget amount of $20,000. I think the last one was right
around 15, so we're thinking it might be right in...I don't have a firm quote from them,
but that's based on our, I think it was right about 15 or 16,000 last time.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah, I think it's appropriate that we do it. I'm not sure that it's
necessary to redo it this soon. We take the percentages that we've, percentage of each
of the operating budgets and just keep the same percentage for a while, but 20,000 is
not all that much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you. Yeah. So what we do on an annual basis, then, is take this
report and base a percentage. So we do take the percentage from, that's presented in
this report as a cost of, you know, salaries and wages and then apply that to each
year's, you know, proposed and then, finally, adopted salaries and wages so that the
overhead amounts are adjusted, you know, for each year theoretically, based on some
kind of cost calculation, but it is a percentage that we do every year. The idea of
redoing this plan was, you know, as Mr. Walker mentioned, the, we hadn't done,
nobody, almost nobody in the County at the time this plan was done had gone
through the first plan in 1998 or '99, never went through and it was a learning
experience. You know, one of the major factors that came up during Budget
Committee discussion was the overhead of the Water Supply and how come that went
so significantly. And my recollection is it went from like a 3.5 percent overhead cost
allocation to about a 42 percent cost allocation. And so and it seems like a huge
number, but you gotta realize that in 1998/ '99 when that last Cost Allocation Plan
was done, the Water Department was semiautonomous, right. They had a Board of
Water Supply that operated them. They did very little with the County and now, you
know, it is a County department, there's a lot more overhead cost. They do have their
own fiscal staff and their own...they pay for a lot of their own expenses, so it's actually
the lowest of the special revenue funds. It's the lowest percentage of overhead that's
charged, but it's still a way...it's significantly higher than it was, you know, before the
plan was introduced, so. I think it's a good idea just to kinda confirm at this point,
now it's a few years later. They're gonna be using Fiscal Year '15 data, so it's three
year's newer data. There's been some reorganizations in different departments since
then and well have a better idea of making sure we're answering the questions
properly, too. The receiving departments and the granting departments all are asked,
basically, what is your function, what are you doing and how do you service other
departments. And so we gotta make sure that that's accurately presented.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I remember the shock to the Water Department was, my recollection is
it went from about 300,000 up to 4.7 million or something like that, a significant
increase and, basically, took all the rate increase for that year and the rate increase
went just to overhead which I think all of us have a little bit of a challenge with. But
at the same time, it is appropriate to be charging the departments for the, you know,
the value of the services that they require. So thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Just kind of interested, you know, I'm
familiar with cost allocation plan in another situation. Does this require approval by
anybody when you get it, before you implement?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No, the body, the County Council is the one that
appropriates the overheads that are reimbursed there, but the plan itself doesn't
require a specific adoption. The, working with our Federal grantors, the OMB A-87
Compliant Allocation Plan can be presented to them to create an indirect cost rate. I
don't know the current status of that. We've had some initial discussions on setting a
current indirect cost rate for the County. Our cognizant agency is the Housing and
Urban Development, you know, HUD that oversees our Section 8 and HOME and
CDBG. So that's the, the cognizant agency is the biggest Federal department we deal
with, so that's the ones we've been negotiating with for an indirect cost rate.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: That's good. That's what I was wondering about if you had to
have approval from the cognizant agency, but I know a lot of it is just internal.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. So right now we use what you were more familiar with at MEO, which is
actual cost, so, you know, we're reimbursing -COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Oh, really?
MR. BAZ: --yeah, the actual cost so, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: Wow.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. And this compliant plan helps us to produce some of the actual cost
information.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. No, this is really good. It's a tough thing to do, Chair, but
it's nice. Apparently we have a very competent consultant and I think we should
update.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, none at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I do, but it may be very elementary. I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I believe Mr. Walker was saying that some of the departments
would like an opportunity to redo the, I guess, the study or the plan and I'm just
curious as to why they didn't get it correct the first time? It...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Walker?
MR. WALKER: Well, I don't know that they didn't necessarily get it correct, they were just
surprised at the result.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And what would be the difference between doing it a second
time?
MR. WALKER: Well, I don't know and there may be no difference and that's, I guess, you
know, we would do another plan to, everyone's been through the process. They
understand when a, the consultant's asking a question, what, you know, what they
mean. If there was any, if they were confused or there was misinterpretation or
something, so you know, the goal here would be to do it again. The consultant is very
sharp. They spend a lot of time with the various departments. She, if it's the same
gal, she flies here and stays for a week or so, meets with all the departments and goes
through this litany of questions and, you know, and again she's gonna have been
through our County as well and so, that should give her some additional insight. So
I'm not exactly sure what you're driving at but I think you're saying -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I, no, I'm trying to understand...
MR. WALKER: --would they change their answers so that they could reduce the cost?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
MR. WALKER: I mean...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That's what I was getting at. It was like, were you implying
that that was the case that they needed a do over to -MR. WALKER: No, I'm just...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --somehow show that there's a reduction of the overhead as
compared to what is presented -MR. WALKER: I mean...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --right now?
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MR. WALKER: The rumblings I heard was they didn't realize what they were saying was
gonna be so impactful and so I'm not saying they would change their answers and I
defer to the consultant who knows what she's doing and has been through this once,
so if suddenly a department says, oh, no, we don't use them, well, we don't use that
department, I mean, I, she's gonna know if someone's pulling her leg or not. So I trust
the other departments. I don't think there's going to be a bunch of hanky-panky, but
based on the feedback, I, you know, I would wanna, I'm thinking we should do this
again and see what the differences is. The Budget Director mentioned it's three year's
fresher data.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
MR. WALKER: Everybody's been through it one time, let's see what the results are. I mean
at the end of the day, the bills are being paid. We're just allocating the money. We're
just allocating the cost, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to explore that
statement that was initially made. So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought that was very good questions, Mr. Guzman. So thank you for
bringing it forward. We, I invited some of the departments, if they would come and
share their thoughts regarding the cost allocation. And so I'm going to ask Water,
Mr. Meyer, Ms. Perdido [sic], why don't you come forward, share with us your
comments regarding the cost allocation subject that we are currently discussing and
how you folks are dealing with it within your Department of Water Supply.
Mr. Meyer?
MR. MEYER: Good afternoon, Paul Meyer and Holly Ho, for Water Department. Thank you.
We've listened to discussion and we really did not have a chance to review the study in
advance and certainly read with great interest our allocation amounts and we really
weren't asked and didn't really have any authority or opportunity to rebut formally or
comment on the numbers. Holly and I have a lot of experience over the years dealing
with cost allocations and, in other environments, so we have some opinions, but it's a,
I think it's a good idea to have the, perhaps, the study redone and chewed up and we
agree with Mr. Baz that it's a, and with the Deputy from Finance, Mr. Walker, that it's
probably appropriate to have it looked at again. Holly?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Perdido?
MS. HO: Holly Ho, Water Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, excuse me, Ms. Ho.
MS. HO: That's okay. I'd respond to both names. Yeah, as you know, last year we, when we
were hit with this large amount, we were kind of dumbfounded because we did not
participate in it and we wish we could've. And the Finance took the initiative to do it
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and so we needed, we took what we were told we had to pay, so yes, we would be
agreeable and like to participate if it does come up again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Did you have a chance to work with the consultant during this current
allocation plan?
MS. HO: No, we...no, I did not and I don't think...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you know, Mr. Meyer, if someone from the Department was
participating with the consultant? Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I'm not, I wasn't personally involved in this project, but I was aware
that the consultant did go and interview the departments. I'm not sure which exact
staff she interviewed, but she defmitely did interview departments. I got interviewed.
I'm not sure exactly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well I'm sure it's in her notes somewhere of the various representatives of
the departments that she met to get her information on. Since we have the Water
Supply forward, I'll ask Ms. Baisa if she has any questions for our resource people?
COUNCILMEMBER BALSA: No, thank you, Chair. I thought it has been cleared, the issue
that we had and I think Mr. Meyer's right. I think something updated might be helpful
then we can live with it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions, sir? Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, other than the Department has done a good job and I'd
like to see an update also. I agree with you, Mr. Meyer. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Guzman, anything for Water Supply? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not for Water, but for Mr. Baz. What amount, what percentage of the
general costs was returned to or was recouped by these charges to the various funds?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. The total dollar amount and I'd have to go back and
look at the FY '12 Budget, but it was $145.4 million that was distributed, the costs
that were borne by the County that were distributed out to the receiving departments.
So you know, we could look at that and base it on the total budget for Fiscal Year '12,
but the other thing to understand is that the Full Cost Allocation Plan provides for the
costs to be disbursed to all the receiving agencies no matter what their funding source
is. The ones, departments that are General Fund funded, Police, Fire, Parks, mostly,
they aren't being charged that overhead rate in that department because they're
General Fund funded departments to begin with. There's only the special revenue
funds where you see that dollar amount coming back into the General Fund.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What was that dollar amount as a percentage of the total?
MR. BAZ: I'd have to get back to you on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was Water was something like, 4.6, 4.7 million and
Wastewater was a little higher if I'm not mistaken and then Solid Waste... some of it's
kind of odd because Solid Waste got a huge allocation and we turn around and fund
them with General Fund money anyway and so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, do you have a comment?
MR. BAZ: Just, you know, to respond to Chair White's comments is, you know, yes, we do
for the Solid Waste Fund subsidize and Golf as well. You know, we do supplemental
transfers to those funds to cover the costs, but as an entity, you know, as a business
unit, we want to still show what those costs are. And, you know, to a certain extent, it
would be nice for us to show those costs to all of our business units, including all the
General Fund ones, but the resource required to produce that information would be
pretty significant. So when we look at things like Solid Waste where even though we're
doing a supplemental transfer it, you know, so, yeah, the money's just coming in and
out of the General Fund, the same thing. At least it shows, then, what the true cost of
the Solid Waste operations are so, you know, that, we can look at, if it's the initiative
of the Council to move forward to covering more of those cost, we can understand
what those true costs are. And I'm stalling because I'm still looking up the
Countywide overhead reimbursement, we have that...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's alright. You can get it to us later, actually probably can, we can
probably find it in the budget anyway.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. As we discussed, tomorrow actually we'll be going over this and I can get
that information to you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Crivello? Mr. Couch? Anything else for Mr. Meyer
or Ms. Ho? Thank you very much for being here. We'll ask Mr. Miyamoto if he has
comments he'd like to share for Environmental Management regarding the cost
allocation subject. Thank you for being here this afternoon, Mr. Miyamoto, so if you
could share your comments with us regarding the cost allocation.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If you remember back in around 2007 when the
Departments of Public Works and Environmental Management split apart and we
created two departments, you can imagine if this plan hadn't been updated. When I
started in DEM, I found out we were still paying funds to help support Public Works,
like Wastewater and Solid Waste were paying part of the, some of the money towards
Public Works Director's office because previously they were together. They got
separated by the Charter amendment, but that the study not being updated, didn't
have the opportunity to separate that out. So this update does all of that, corrects all
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of those changes that have been made, so we've been pretty much in support of it and
we look forward to the update to see if it possibly, if it reduced our portion of the
support funds that we had to other departments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you're okay with the allocation and the numbers that are currently
being utilized that are being charged to your respective cost centers?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Some of it we, you know, like for example, like MIS, we all don't realize how
much they do for us because they do behind the scenes type work. They maintain our
network. They maintain our access and information for us. We don't see it, so we're
like, well, why is that percentage so high? But in reality, every morning we turn on
our computers. They're the ones that make sure we can have access. It's now
connected to our telephone systems, so without our computer and our network, we
don't have telephones now. So, yeah, it sort of takes a little bit of understanding on
our part more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there any areas of concern or interest that this Committee
should be made aware of within your Department's jurisdiction?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Not at this time because it can vary from year to year. For example, I'll
take Corporation Counsel, if we're not in any litigation, we're obviously aren't using
them, but now we're heavily into litigation regarding some of our wastewater issues, so
we appreciate we're probably getting more for our percentage.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: None at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nothing further, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Nothing further, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ... (inaudible)...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, thank you for being patient, Mr. Miyamoto, with the
Committee and we appreciate, even if it's been a short visit, we appreciate your
comments as it regards to the Cost Allocation Plan, so thank you very much.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Baz, as we understand it and, Mr. Walker, there is going to be a
request for an update study in the upcoming budget proposal?
MR. WALKER: That's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And as I understand it from the question, you responded to
Mr. White, it's approximately in the ballpark of $20,000?
MR. WALKER: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, Mr. Baz, anything you want to...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just, since Mr. Miyamoto was able to answer some questions, I
did look up, for Fiscal Year 2016, the adopted overhead reimbursement that we're
looking at is about $20.5 million and for Fiscal Year '17, the proposed is about
$22 million.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for that quick response. Any further questions or
comments, Members, regarding this item? The Chair is open to filing this
Communication 15-89 and all related documents.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino, to file
County Communication 15-89 and attached documents as it relates to BF-54. Any
further discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no." Motion passes with eight "ayes," and one excused,
Ms. Cochran.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
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NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Cochran.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FILING of communication by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: We have one more item to complete today's requirements, Members.
Thank you, Mr. Walker.

ITEM 56:

RECLASSIFICATION OF POSITIONS (CC 15-230, CC 16-51)

CHAIR HOKAMA: It is Item BF-56 under the heading of Reclassification of Positions. We
have two communications. One, 15-230 and 16-51, from Mr. Hiromoto, Director of
Personnel Services, transmitting report of reclassification of positions that were
transferred from one compensation plan to another and one was for Calendar Year
2014 and the second is for Calendar Year 2015. Is Mr. Hiromoto gonna come up? I
was gonna first ask Mr. Baz if he has anything he'd like to share on this subject?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, just to review the report, County Communication 16-51 which is the
latest report to the Committee, the Council, relating to the reclassification. You 11 see
positions changing bargaining units from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 on
the second page there. And you'll see that there's a number of positions that have
been reclassified on the left-hand side, the first column, it's got the department short
name there, it's got the position number, the effective date, if there was a change in
bargaining unit, it would have a new unit there, the new job and then a new scale if
there's a scale for that job. So you can see here that a number of positions were
reclassified to higher levels, some of them were reclassified to lower levels and the
department staff, excuse me, the department directors and the managers go through
on a regular basis and review positions mostly when they become vacant, but
sometimes at other times, to see if there is a need to change the duties of that position
so that they can better be utilized within their management perspective. Sometimes
you'll see that they, the existing position, you know, the person went from a 1 to a 2,
to a 3 to a 4, now they're finally retired, we bring that position back down to a 1 for
that new employee to start. So just different functions and
you know. If you
have any specific questions regarding these reclassifications, you know, maybe we
could get it in writing to the different department directors and they can, you know,
respond if there's any specific issues.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. When you look at that 16-51, the one that stood out that I can tell
you quickly catches my eye is the second grouping. You have a Rec Aide, Bargaining
Unit 03, which is clerical, SR-07, Step A, going to an SR-20 for an Accountant 2 in
Step C. Then we have an Electrical Inspector 2, SR-19/A to now an SR-22/C for an
Engineer from an Inspector. And you got a Supervising Construction Inspector to a
Civil Engineer. We have a Computer Support Technician 2, SR-15 to an Information
Systems Analyst 3, SR-20. We have a Recycling Program Assistant, SR-15 to a
Mechanical Engineer 3, SR-22. We have a Clerk 2, SR-08, all of a sudden now it is an
SR-22, Economic Development Specialist 2. And then we have fmally, the Landfill
Bulldozer Operator, BC-10 to a SR-22, Department--what is that--something
Coordinator. Yeah. So those are the kind of things if you can give us comment and
you're aware of, Mr. Baz or Mr. Hiromoto, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6...those 7 positions or
reclassifications stood out for me. Any comments, either, Mr. Hiromoto or Mr. Baz?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Hiromoto, thank you for being here.
MR. HIROMOTO: For the specific reasons why the department requested the reallocation, we
have to check with the department. My staff would generally take a look at the
request that's been generated by the department and look at the position description
that's submitted by the department. And in many instances also take a look at the job
site and see whether that job, the position description changes the classification of
that current position and if it does, we have to determine what does that position
description accurately reflect. In these cases, it looks, what happened was that the,
when my staff looks at the position description submitted by the department, it did
not reflect the current classification of that position, so a reallocation was warranted
and that's again based on the job duties that the department informs us has changed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is it a good assumption on this Committee part, gentlemen, that all
those old positions that were reclassified will not be requested in the upcoming Budget
for Fiscal Year 2017?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, I would suppose that the, when it is reflect, when departments
submit their Budget for FY '17, that it would reflect the changed position. It depends
on when this happened. It looks like these are all reported changes in Calendar Year
2015, so I would think it could be because we begin our budget process towards the
ending of the calendar year and if this changes happened after the, our departmental
submittal to Budget Office, it may not reflect accurately. But if these changes
occurred prior to our submittal to Budget Office, then it should appear in the 2017
Budget request as existing classifications.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, could you tell us whether this -MR. BAZ: So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --how you approach the upcoming budget, please?
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MR. BAZ: Sure. So, yeah, any reclassifications that were, we would assume that most of
them were presented to the department...from the department to my office in their
proposed budgets. We did catch some that we knew about and was able to fix it. I
guarantee with 2,500 positions, we didn't catch 'em all but, you know, we try our best.
The question you had regarding, you know, the, so they reclassified a... go back to one
of the ones you mentioned there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Like Public Works, let's just say...
MR. BAZ: Yeah. So Public works, they reclassified a Landfill Bulldozer Operator -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --to a Department Contracts Coordinator. That one, you know, I, if they did need
a Landfill Bulldozer Operator in the Fiscal Year '17 Budget now, that position would be
an expansion position. So there's no real, without, you know, just by specific position
numbers, the only way that we can track whether or not a position is existing or
expansion and if they do reclassify a position and then come, you know, a year or two
later and say, well, you know, now we need a Landfill Bulldozer Operator, which
they're not going to because this is Public Works, not even Environmental
Management -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --so I'm not even sure why there was a Landfill Bulldozer Operator position in -CHAIR HOKAMA: Public Works.
MR. BAZ: --Public Works anyway. But if they did for some reason need to add it, then it
would be an expansion and, you know, that has to be then reviewed and a
determination made if that's an appropriate expansion or not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maybe this is Mr. Goode's way of recharging back to EM some of
the cost.
MR. BAZ: You know, Mr. Chair, what I've noticed is that a lot of times, you know, the
difficulty that departments have in creating new positions, sometimes it's easier for
them to reclassify it but what, you know, so if we take a position number and then
reclassify it, it makes it little bit of a more simpler process than to go create a new
position. And so they'll take that and, you know, take a vacant position that's, like the
Clerk 2 in the Mayor's Office, that was a position that wasn't filled, hadn't been filled
for years, it was just sitting there and it was easier to take that position and stick
somebody in it and reclassify it than...reclassify it and stick somebody in it than to
just go and have Personnel Services, you know, create a whole new position with
another number and things like that so, you know, it's...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand what you're explaining, Mr. Baz. And you're right, there are
times when that's, you know, the better way to approach it, so I understand what
you're sharing with the Committee. Mr. Guzman, any questions for Mr. Hiromoto or
Mr. Baz regarding reclassification?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, just the reclassification means, in most instances, that
there's a higher pay scale as well, correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Most of the time. It's not every single, but I would say, generally, that's a
pretty accurate way of looking at it, but it goes the opposite way -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --once in a while.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So specifically on the, you referenced the Economic
Development Clerk 2 to SR...the Clerk 2's an SR-08 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and then reclassifying SR-22, that's a higher scale position,
correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: A lot more, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions you would like to ask? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ... (inaudible)...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello, anything on reclassification?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I'm good, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz, what were you saying about the Landfill Attendant? The
Landfill Attendant...
MR. BAZ: The Landfill Bulldozer Operator, towards the bottom of the list, the second...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah. The Landfill Attendant...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I just, I was gonna make a comment, Chair, that interestingly enough,
last year we provided Landfill Attendants, and at the same time it looks like they
reclassified one of the Landfill Attendants to Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator -MR. BAZ: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --is that correct?
MR. BAZ: That's what it shows on this report. So, but the thing that's not in this report is
what's funded and what's authorized. So you, you know, you, the Council authorizes
employee counts, E/P counts for a program and provides funding theoretically for
enough, for enough for it to fund all of the E/Ps. So the, when we review the, an item
like this, it was probably a different position but in the Personnel's systems
classification, it's still classified as a Landfill Attendant when it hadn't been filled or
used or authorized or funded for that position for a number of years anyway. I mean
we could go back and do...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You mean that's a possibility?
MR. BAZ: That's a, most of these, we're not gonna, I wouldn't authorize a Solid Waste funded
position to be reclassified to a Wastewater funded position. You know, that funded
position is funded through Solid Waste and has to function in Solid Waste.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But in the previous year, we had taken a position in Solid Waste and
given it to Wastewater.
MR. BAZ: It could be that...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh no, I'm sorry, to Public Works.
MR. BAZ: Oh, yeah, right. Well, you don't...you do, but you don't. The Council doesn't take
a position, you know, PW-0334 and move it to, you know, DEM, to...they don't move
that specific position. You take a, an E/P count -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: --so you take 40 E/P counts and make it 39 and make the other one from 22 to
23.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I understand that.
MR. BAZ: That's what you're moving.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But I'm just suggesting that it's a little odd that we were, we had lots of
arguments over how many Landfill Attendants there were and we're taking one Landfill
Attendant position, authorized or unauthorized, and moving it to Wastewater and then
down, little further below, there's a Mechanical Engineer 3, which they were also
requesting that's moved to an Equipment Operator 3 about the same time.
MR. BAZ: And a Recycling Program Assistant that was made into a Mechanical Engineer
and...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. These, that's why it's really hard to explain and to look at a report like this
and say specifically that that, you know, whatever it was, DE-0105, Landfill
Attendant, was that a funded or authorized position? It may have been vacant for five
years, but the department just utilized that, you know, vacant and unfunded for five
years and they just used that position number versus creating a new position number.
You know, if we scrapped this process and just went to, okay, every time you want to
create a new position, we just create a new position number, we'd run out of position
numbers eventually.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, no, I, and don't get me wrong. I appreciate what the
Administration is doing by reclassification because I think it's, you know, in many
cases it's helping us fill needs without adding people and so I, you know, I don't have a
problem with it. But, Mr. Chair, I think I would like to request Mr. Hiromoto to
provide us with a history on the Environmental Management positions to see whether
they were in fact languishing somewhere or not. If you would be -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --agreeable to that, I would appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You folks clear on what Mr. White is requesting? Okay. I just wanted to
make sure the Staff is clear on what you're requesting, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I'm interesting in finding out that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again maybe for Mr. Hiromoto, Mr. White, 'cause when you look
at...and again I appreciate Mr. Baz saying it's very difficult when you just look at one
81/2 x 11 page and try to figure out all the Administrative factors involved in this
reclassification because, Members, if you look for 1, 2, 3...the 4th and 5th positions
from the bottom of the page, it's interesting, you will see a Mechanical Engineer
shifting to an Equipment Operator 3 and they're shifting an Equipment Operator 3 to
a Mechanical Engineer 3. Mr. Hiromoto, I mean you may know about this interesting
one, so if you could maybe help us understand?
MR. HIROMOTO: Chair, for that particular position, it's the same position, DE-0160, so it
looks like in March 6 of 2015, the position was Equipment Operator 3, it went to a
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Mechanical Engineer 3. Then in July, on July 1st, it went back from an Equipment
Operator 3, it went back to a Mechanical Engineer 3...excuse me, the opposite.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It almost looks like they changed it just after budget.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, they changed it and then two months later, they changed it back is what the
outcome of that was. So the Equipment Operator, so yeah, so for DE-0160, it was an
Equipment Operator and it stayed an, I mean it was reclassified basically to an
Equipment Operator again a few months later. Why they did that, I'm not quite sure.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, there were a lot of things that during that timeframe that we
couldn't understand either, so.
MR. BAZ: It could be that this was a position that...and if I'm recollecting this properly...this
could be the position that was requested in the budget, then, but and so it was funded
in the budget, but prior to the budget being approved, they wanted to recruit for that
position. So they might have taken a vacant position and reclassified it so they could
actually go through their recruitment process and then on July 1st, once the new
budget was in place, and that new engineer that was approved was then created, we
took that position and put it back to Equipment Operator is, from what this looks like,
my recollection of that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Send a letter to EM. Tell the Director we want an explanation.
Anything else, Members? Any other...Mr. Guzman, did you have a question, sir?
Okay. Nothing else? The Chair is willing to file this. Is there any request for us to
defer this to keep it for future discussion, Members? Okay. If not, the Chair is, will
entertain a motion to file County Communications 15-230 and 16-51 and all
attachments pertinent to this BF-56.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: A motion made by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch. Any further
discussion, Members? Having none, calling for the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say "no." Motion passes with seven "ayes," two excused,
Ms. Cochran and Mr. Victorino.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Couch, Crivello,
and Guzman.
NOES:

None.
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ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Cochran and Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FILING of communications by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Members, for again another good day of hard work.
Tomorrow we start officially the march on the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget Proposal, so
sharpen your pencils, get your rest because the march is on. Thank you very much
for your presence. This meeting is adjourned. . . .(gavel). . .
ADJOURN: 3:00 p.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:160329:jb

Transcribed by: Joanne Bista
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